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1 WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 5, 2015 10:27 A.M. 

2 [Pause in the proceedings] 

3 THE COURT: All right, Connell. We'll have 

4 everybody make appearances. 

5 MR. POWELL: Good morning, Your Honor. Joe 

6 Powell, appearing on behalf of Jacqueline Montoya and 

7 Kathryn Bouvier, who are both present in Court today. 

8 THE COURT: And, for the record, Mr. Warnick has 

9 substituted out and you're going to be representing --

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

MR. POWELL: Correct. 

THE COURT: -- both. 

MR. POWELL: I'm now 

THE COURT: Okay. 

MR. POWELL: counsel for --

THE COURT: For both. 

MR. POWELL: Ms. Bouvier, as --

THE COURT: Just -­

MR. POWELL: -- well. 

THE COURT: -- so -- for the record, we won't be 

20 expecting Mr. Warnick 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. POWELL: Yes. 

THE COURT: -- future. 

MR. POWELL: Correct. 

THE COURT: Okay. Great. Thanks. 

MR. MOODY: Good morning, Judge. Todd Moody, bar 
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1 number 5430, for Fred Waid, Court-appointed Trustee. Mr. 

Waid is here with me this --

THE COURT: Thank --

MR. MOODY: morning. 

THE COURT: you. 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 MR. LENHARD: Good morning, Your Honor. Kirk 

7 Lenhard and Tammy Peterson on behalf of Ms. Ahern. She's 

8 also present in the courtroom. 

9 THE COURT: Wonderful. My question about this --

10 and I -- before we discuss the merits of it, I'd like to 

11 talk to all counsel about -- procedurally, are we -- is 

12 this premature? Because -- and I'm not sure -- it looks 

13 like the hearing on the contempt proceeding is on the 18 th
• 

14 And I think Judge Gonzalez is going to hear it herself, --

15 

16 

MR. LENHARD: Correct. 

THE COURT: -- instead of giving it to -- okay. 

17 So that would just be my question, is: Do we need to have 

18 that result one way or the other or does it affect this at 

19 all? Because it seemed to me that there were certain -- I 

20 know Mr. Powell's firmly of the opinion it is not, but it 

21 seemed to me that some of the issues that Mr. Powell raises 

22 are yet to be determined and kind of contingent on the 

23 outcome. 

24 position, 

25 

So I don't know what the -- what's the Trustee's 

MR. MOODY: So, Judge, --
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1 

2 

THE COURT: 

MR. MOODY: 

Mr. Moody? 

let me speak first. And let me 

3 just say that the Court will probably recognize the fact 

4 that nothing has been filed by Mr. Waid 

5 THE COURT: Correct. Yeah. 

6 MR. MOODY: -- with --

7 THE COURT: I understand 

8 MR. MOODY: respect to --

9 THE COURT: that. 

10 MR. MOODY: the motion that we're here for 

11 today. So we're not taking a position either substantively 

12 or procedurally. 

13 

14 

THE COURT: I understand. 

MR. MOODY: But we're here -- if this is an 

15 evidentiary hearing, Mr. Waid is prepared to testify. 

16 He'll take the stand. He can talk about documents. He's 

17 more than happy to do that for either side, so I'm actually 

18 -- with that, I'm going to sit in the gallery with Mr. Waid 

19 and offer any help that we can today. 

20 

21 

THE COURT: Okay. 

MR. MOODY: But we've not filed an opposition or a 

22 response, a joinder. If there was something that could say 

23 we take no position, that's what we would have filed. 

24 

25 

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you. 

MR. MOODY: Thanks, Judge. 
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1 

2 is 

THE COURT: Okay. So, Mr. Lenhard, if your issue 

if you believe that this is something that, once 

3 Judge Gonzalez makes whatever her determination is, then 

4 you need further evidence, as suggested by Mr. Moody, from 

5 Mr. Waid or from whoever, we do have time later in the 

6 month or 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

we've lost our --

MR. LENHARD: You're going to -­

THE COURT: -- week in 

MR. LENHARD: -- to be a bit 

THE COURT: -- October. Yeah? 

MR. LENHARD: -- surprised by my position, but I 

12 don't believe the contempt hearing has anything to do with 

13 these proceedings. 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

an 

THE COURT: Okay. 

MR. LENHARD: And we're prepared to proceed --

THE COURT: Okay. Is this something that you need 

evidentiary hearing on? 

MR. LENHARD: I don't think so. 

THE COURT: Okay. 

MR. LENHARD: It's briefed and it's -- and --

THE COURT: Okay. 

MR. LENHARD: -- we're 

THE COURT: Great. 

MR. LENHARD: -- ready to argue. 

THE COURT: All right. So, then, Mr. Powell? 
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1 MR. LENHARD: I will make it clear: I'm objecting 

2 to an evidentiary hearing because we feel a trial's 

3 necessary and a trial by ambush is not appropriate. 

4 THE COURT: Okay. So, not just that -- it's your 

5 view that this is premature and that there should be a 

6 trial on these issues? 

7 MR. LENHARD: I -- I've set out in my pleadings 

8 exactly what I'm going to argue and I'm prepared to argue 

9 when my 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

THE 

MR. 

THE 

MR. 

THE 

MR. 

COURT: 

LENHARD: 

COURT: 

LENHARD: 

COURT: 

LENHARD: 

Okay. 

-- time comes --

Okay. 

-- this morning. 

Got it. Okay. Got it. 

And I do feel there are a number 

16 procedural deficiencies with these proceedings this 

17 morning. 

18 

19 Powell? 

20 

THE COURT: Okay. Great. Okay. So, then, Mr. 

MR. POWELL: Your Honor, as you know, this is a 

of 

21 Court of equity. You have extraordinary powers as a Court 

22 of equity, as a Probate Court that have been granted to you 

23 by the Legislature. The point of a Court of equity is to 

24 create remedies that are just and fair. 

25 This Court has a desire and also an obligation, as 
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1 well, Your Honor, to protect people and innocent parties. 

2 Probate Court has jurisdiction over all parties related to 

3 a matter: Beneficiaries, Trustee, any other person that's 

4 affected, including contingent beneficiaries. 

5 Probate Court -- and this, I think, is where 

6 there is a gap in understanding. Probate Court is not 

7 about plaintiff versus defendant. It's a totality of the 

8 circumstances situation. We are dealing with rights, 

9 obligations, many things going on here. 

10 As I said, the Court has to take into 

11 consideration totality of the circumstances, all 

12 circumstances, what's occurring, whose rights have been 

13 affected, what obligations there were, what duties there 

14 were, and, in turn, fashion remedies, given the 

15 circumstances, which also include handing out punishment 

16 when it's deserving and also awarding damages. 

17 This Court has the power, but also a duty, to make 

18 things right, just, and fair. In your order, Your Honor, 

19 of March 20 th
, which was the order regarding accounting, 

20 breach of fiduciary duty claims, and award of attorney's 

21 fees, which you -- wound up signing on April 17 th
• You made 

22 an interlineation in that order. You said, quote: 

23 Based on the information available to the Court on 

24 March 20 th
, 2015. 

25 So your full ruling, with that added on, was: 
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1 Jacqueline and Kathryn's claim for breach of 

2 fiduciary duty against Eleanor, as Trustee of the 

3 Trust, is denied, as it related to the accounting, 

4 based on information available to the Court on March 

5 2 0 th
, 2 0 15 . 

6 Your Honor, at that time, you, my clients, Ms. 

7 Ahern's representatives at the time, made very definitive 

8 statements. They painted a picture for Your Honor that 

9 there was essentially $2,000,000 sitting in a trust account 

10 safe and secure, perfectly there. And Ms. Ahern all along 

11 -- oh, she had done all of her fiduciary obligations. 

12 There was no problems. There was no anything. 

13 Well, you made a subsequent determination to 

14 remove her as Trustee. You then appointed Mr. Waid. Mr. 

15 Waid then looked at everything and what we knew then and 

16 what this Court knew then is materially and substantially 

17 different from what we know now, as evidenced by Mr. Waid's 

18 report. 

19 Throughout this procedure, you've made it a point 

20 of stating that Ms. Ahern has retained the finest counsel, 

21 where Mrs. Ahern is now on counsel number four. So I would 

22 like to think that the representations of all prior 

23 counsel, given their standing in the community, were done 

24 completely with good faith because, if they weren't, then 

25 there's issues there. 
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1 But, giving them the benefit of the doubt, 

2 everybody in this matter has been bamboozled, including Ms. 

3 Ahern's attorneys, as to what actually has gone on. The 

4 evidence of this Your Honor is Mr. Waid's reporting to this 

5 Court. Mr. Waid is an independent party here, appointed by 

6 this Court to look at what really went on here, pulling 

7 back the curtain to see what exactly went on. 

8 THE COURT: Well, can we talk about what reporting 

9 we've got from Mr. Waid? We never actually said, okay, Mr. 

10 Waid, by X date, you've got to give us a full accounting. 

11 And I'm not sure he could, even yet. 

12 MR. POWELL: Correct. He's 

13 THE COURT: So I --

14 MR. POWELL: -- still 

15 THE COURT: -- guess that 

16 MR. POWELL: can't --

17 THE COURT: The question is: Do we first need 

18 to say: 

19 MR. POWELL: I don't --

20 THE COURT: We need something from Mr. Waid 

21 that gives us his actual report on the conditions? Because 

22 he's given this Court some interim reports. I don't know 

23 what he's going to report when he goes -- if he testifies 

24 in the hearing with Judge Gonzalez, 

25 MR. POWELL: And 
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1 THE COURT: I don't know. 

2 MR. POWELL: And -- correct, 

3 THE COURT: So don't 

4 MR. POWELL: -- Your Honor, 

5 THE COURT: -- don't we need some sort of a 

6 report, ask --

7 MR. POWELL: I don't --

8 THE COURT: that --

9 MR. POWELL: -- believe so, Your --

10 THE COURT: -- to the --

11 MR. POWELL: -- Honor. 

12 THE COURT: best of his ability? 

13 MR. POWELL: I think he has given you the best of 

14 his ability as of now, given there are still questions that 

15 Ms. Ahern has refused to answer from Mr. Waid. There's 

16 still records. And I don't meant to have -- Mr. Moody can 

17 Jump up at any time here on behalf of Mr. Waid to report. 

18 What we have now, I think, is more than enough to know 

19 what's gone on here. 

20 Ms. Ahern has defied your orders. She has lied in 

21 this matter under penalty of perjury. She filed her 

22 accounting, Your Honor, making very specific declarations: 

23 This is what's happened. I'm holding this money. This 

24 money is all there. I have done nothing wrong as Trustee. 

25 I've done all my actions as Trustee. This and that. 
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1 Your Honor, the simplest way I can boil down this 

2 argument to you, as evidenced by Mr. Waid's report, there 

3 should have been over $2,000,000, approximately, that was 

4 sitting in an account. And, just so we're clear in the 

5 context of this, what would this account have contained? 

6 Well, Your Honor, going back to 2013, this would have had 

7 the 65 percent that was in dispute for Jacqueline and 

8 Kathryn. That's the money we're talking about here. 

9 There was no requirement that Ms. Ahern -- she 

10 wasn't leaving her 35 percent in this trust account. The 

11 trust account was comprised of Jacqueline and Kathryn's 65 

12 percent, Your Honor. It should have had well over 

13 $2,000,000 when Mr. Waid took the position of Trustee. 

14 Your Honor, when he first looked at the account, 

15 it had less than $10,000. What more do we need to get into 

16 as to that? The money was not there. Mr. Waid, basically 

17 akin to what anyone would have to do, made a demand to get 

18 the money back. He's got some of the money back well after 

19 the fact, but the fact is the actions have already 

20 occurred, Your Honor. You don't unwind and unring the bell 

21 of what you already did. 

22 Mr. Waid has reported to the Court what the issues 

23 are. There wasn't tax filings. We were led to believe, 

24 oh, there -- we're doing reportings to the IRS, we're doing 

25 what a Trustee has to do, because the money is being held. 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

There was no tax filing done for 2013, Your Honor. 

There's no tax filing done for 2014, Your Honor. Mr. Waid, 

two days before the deadline, was told by Ms. Ahern's 

accountant: Oh, by the way, we need the trust to pay, 

basically $700,000. That $700,000 was not to be paid to 

for tax purposes. 

Your Honor. 

That was Jacqueline and Kathryn's money, 

8 This we have more than enough here -- and I can 

9 go through it in substantial detail. We have more than 

10 enough for you to render your ruling here. 

11 

12 

13 

THE COURT: Okay. And that's -­

MR. POWELL: There's a clear --

THE COURT: Specifically, the relief that you're 

14 requesting -- there's 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

MR. POWELL: Multiple aspects. 

THE COURT: Three things: Damages, 

MR. POWELL: Correct. 

THE COURT: -- which would consist of what? 

MR. POWELL: Well, Your Honor, there was 

20 conversion of the assets. It didn't belong to Ms. Ahern. 

21 THE COURT: Right. So are you looking for 

22 independent -- like, tort damages, --

23 

24 

25 

MR. POWELL: I'm looking 

THE COURT: -- like 

MR. POWELL: -- for I'm looking for treble 
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1 damages, and/or punitive damages, both of which, under NRS, 

2 get us to tripling the damages. 

3 THE COURT: Okay. And then you're also looking 

4 for enforcing the no-contest clause to disinherit --

5 

6 

MR. POWELL: Correct. 

THE COURT: -- Ms. Ahern, and then to surcharge 

7 her income for -- to just replace the amount that she --

8 that should have been there? 

9 MR. POWELL: If Ms. Ahern is not disinherited, our 

10 request is that her share be held and surcharged to the 

11 full extent until Jacqueline 

12 THE COURT: To pay --

13 MR. POWELL: -- and Kathryn 

14 THE COURT: -- this back. 

15 MR. POWELL: -- are back to square, --

16 THE COURT: Okay. 

17 MR. POWELL: -- including all the damages that 

18 have been triggered here, Your Honor. 

19 THE COURT: I'm going to let Mr. Lenhard address 

20 his point because then I'm going to want to ask you: At 

21 what point -- I think that's his I think this is his 

22 position, which is: We're entitled to notice that the --

23 that you're seeking this and this is their first notice. 

24 So I'll let Mr. Lenhard or Ms. Peterson --

25 MR. POWELL: Could I just clarify that real quick 
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1 though? 

2 THE COURT: Yeah. 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

MR. POWELL: I'm not sure what notice is, given 

the fact that we had filed the original petition on June 

3 rd
• So there was substantial notice and has been 

substantial notice of what's gone on here. 

THE COURT: But June 3rd what? 

MR. POWELL: June 3 rd of 2015. 

THE COURT: Okay. Okay. Fine. Just wanted to 

10 make it very clear that this wasn't something that was 

11 raised in the previous case because, see, that was my 

12 problem, was that we settled the first part of the case, 

13 the part of who gets 65, who gets 35. We settled that. 

14 Who settled the -- who gets the 65 percent. We settled 

15 that litigation. That was resolved. 

16 So I just want to make really clear that this 

17 isn't something that's already been released that was 

18 settled through that other part of the litigation, where we 

19 made the determination, okay, I think that this all goes to 

20 the daughters and so we're going to resolve this, because 

21 they had a settlement agreement in place. It fell through. 

22 We had found that she wasn't bound by that 

23 settlement agreement. So then we had the motion and the 

24 Court found for the daughters. So that part of the case, 

25 to me, we'd resolved that. 

Page14 

AA1038



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

So your position is this is a new petition on 

these issues. Got it. Just wanted to make really clear 

that we're talking about -- this is something --

MR. POWELL: Well, I --

THE COURT: -- that's after the fact because of 

the position we were in. I think we talked about this 

before, that the whole point, when we said that -- when the 

request was that the daughters should get some 

distributions in the interim, they could if they could bond 

for it. But that left it then in -- when they couldn't 

bond for it under Ms. Ahern's control. 

It's like, well, okay, then you've got to hold it 

13 for them. If you're not going to be distributing it to 

14 them and you're only on the requirement that they could 

15 bond for it and because you don't want to claw it back, 

16 then you've got to hang onto it, you've got to hold the 

17 form. 

18 So that's what we're talking about here, is that 

19 issue of what was being done while she was acting as the 

20 Trustee for those funds because, you know, the whole reason 

21 of appointing Mr. Waid as an independent third-party 

22 trustee to marshal the assets is that this trust has always 

23 been managed perfectly fine by the beneficiaries. They've 

24 done a -- you know, generations and all the other family 

25 members, they all did perfectly fine. 
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1 You know, it was never anybody's intention that 

2 Mr. Waid was going to have to run this thing forever. I 

3 mean, he was going to come in, marshal the assets and get 

4 it all in good shape, so he could turn it back over. 

5 That's what he I'm sure what he really wants to do, is 

6 get this all back in their hands. 

7 So here's what we have to make this -- I guess 

8 the point is: Who's he turning it over to? Because the 

9 relief you're seeking is that Ms. Ahern would not get any 

10 more money. If she does get money, it's got to be 

11 surcharged and pay back the daughters. 

MR. POWELL: Correct, Your --

THE COURT: Okay. 

MR. POWELL: Honor. 

THE COURT: Got it. 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 MR. POWELL: And, just procedurally though, 

17 think -- just so you're clear as well, this Court's 

18 jurisdiction over this trust since 2009. 9. 

THE COURT: Correct. Yes. 

what 

had 

19 

20 

21 

22 

MR. POWELL: Jurisdiction didn't start in 2013. 

THE COURT: Yes. 

MR. POWELL: The other thing I feel the need to 

I 

23 point out, as well: Ms. Ahern filed an accounting. That -

24 - if you want to go to the point of what's triggered this, 

25 it's the accounting. 
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THE COURT: Okay. Got it. 

MR. POWELL: So there shouldn't be any surprise. 

1 

2 

3 

4 

Marquis and Aurbach and Coffing, as Ms. Ahern's 

representatives, filed the accounting. This stage of the 

5 case, I guess, if you will, is an extension of that issue -

6 

7 

8 

9 actions. 

10 

11 

12 can. 

13 

14 

THE COURT: Got it. 

MR. POWELL: again, triggered by Ms. Ahern's 

THE COURT: Okay. Thanks. Mr. Lenhard? 

MR. LENHARD: I prefer to use the podium, if I 

THE COURT: Certainly. 

MR. LENHARD: I'm sure Mr. Waid would like to, at 

15 some time, turn this trust over, if nothing more than he 

16 won't have to talk to me anymore. He's probably getting 

17 tired of me. In any event, let me remind the Court of 

18 something that I don't think I really need to do. 

19 Yes, you're a Court of equity, but you're also a 

20 constitutional Court and you're bound by the provisions of 

21 the Nevada Constitution, as well as the United States 

22 Constitution. And that means a concept well known to 

23 everybody in this courtroom is in play. It's due process. 

24 THE COURT: I wrote that down before 

25 MR. LENHARD: I know. 
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1 THE COURT: -- you even said the words. 

2 MR. LENHARD: I don't think I had to say the 

3 words. 

4 THE COURT: Right. 

5 MR. LENHARD: And I'm not trying to insult you by 

6 even --

7 THE COURT: Right. 

8 MR. LENHARD: -- reminding you of these 

9 requirements. But, whether Eleanor Ahern is a knave, a bad 

10 person, or whatever, she is entitled to the same due 

11 process rights as any other litigant. And that's the 

12 problem we have with these proceedings today. 

13 I come to Court today to defend what I understood 

14 would be a Motion for the Assessment of Damages, 

15 Enforcement of a No-contest Clause, and Surcharge of Trust 

16 Income. I state that because I've been practicing a few 

17 years, as you know, and normally in motion practice a 

18 motion's filed, then an opposition is filed. 

19 In this case, we filed our Opposition on, I 

20 believe, June 29 th
• Then a Reply is filed a few days later. 

21 Excuse me. In this case, a Reply wasn't filed. Instead we 

22 received a document entitled, A Supplement. It was filed 

23 on August 3rd
, but we received it late Friday, July 31 st by a 

24 courtesy copy from counsel, which, of course, we 

25 appreciate. 

Page 18 

AA1042



1 The original motion sought to strip Eleanor Ahern 

2 of all rights under the trust and assert literally millions 

3 of dollars -- assess literally millions of dollars of 

4 punitive damages. The Supplement sought to expand the 

5 relief sought in today's proceedings to include a return 

6 for rent for office space apparently located in Spanish 

7 Trail, a transfer of three real properties to the Trust 

8 with nothing further, and an additional allocation of 

9 treble damages in the sum of $225,000 for an apparently 

10 misappropriated payment. 

11 As the Court's well aware, it is impossible for us 

12 to file a reply before today's proceedings to a supplement 

13 of that nature filed on Friday afternoon -- or evening, or 

14 it was served on Friday evening. We attempted to do an 

15 Order Shortening Time on a Motion to Strike. Of course, 

16 the Court wouldn't execute it. We are now looking at a 

17 motion to strike this document. It won't be heard until 

18 August 19 th
• So, frankly, our Motion to Strike has little 

19 relevance today. That's why I'm raising these issues. 

20 Now, I don't agree with much in that Supplement, 

21 but I am duty-bound to say a couple things about this 

22 Supplement because I know this Court and this Court has 

23 probably read the Supplement and you certainly heard 

24 argument about the Supplement today. 

25 First of all, let me remind the Court why my firm 
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1 and Ms. Peterson and myself were brought into this case. 

2 We were retained, number one, as former criminal lawyers, 

3 to keep Ms. Ahern out of jail, a worthy task. We were also 

4 brought in to try to negotiate a resolution of this mess. 

5 And we have been working hard with Mr. Waid in an effort to 

6 accomplish that feat. We have been spectacularly 

7 unsuccessful. We, also, were brought in to protect her 

8 interest in the Trust and try to resolve how much she owed 

9 Mr. Waid and we've been working hard to do that. 

10 The reason I bring this up is I've gotten to know 

11 and work with Ms. Ahern the last couple months and, even 

12 though I don't agree with 99 percent of what's in that 

13 Supplement, I do agree with a few comments and I'm going to 

14 state those and I'm going to nudge up to my privileges 

15 issues and not go any further. 

16 There is no doubt in my mind there are third 

17 parties that are influencing Ms. Ahern, third parties not 

18 under my control. And this has been a continuing problem 

19 for my representation and it's of great concern to me as an 

20 attorney and as a person. I don't know if these people are 

21 leeches, as described by Mr. Powell in the pleading, or 

22 other members of the animal kingdom. 

23 tell you. 

I couldn't begin to 

24 But I'm telling you they are out there and I'm 

25 concerned. And I will go no further because I cannot 
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1 violate my privilege. But, under these circumstances, 

2 knowing what is in that Supplement -- and, by the way, what 

3 I've just told you, I've had these conversations with Fred 

4 Waid. He's raised these issues with me. He's concerned. 

5 And it's raised my antennae. 

6 But, knowing what we know about that circumstance, 

7 and knowing what we know about the history of this case, 

8 I'm asking you as an equitable person and, as well, as a 

9 Constitutional Judge, is it fair to divest Eleanor Ahern, 

10 under these circumstances, of all interest in the Trust and 

11 assess about $9,000,000 in punitive damages today, with 

12 nothing more than a brief oral argument between counsel? I 

13 would suggest that is preposterous. 

14 THE COURT: Just for the record, Mr. Lenhard, I 

15 would say I acknowledge Mr. Waid has raised these concerns. 

16 Mr. Powell, for the record, has raised the concerns you 

17 mentioned, pretty much from the beginning. Her daughters 

18 have been very concerned about this. 

19 concerned about this. 

The Court is very 

20 MR. LENHARD: And I've gone as far as I can go in 

21 what I can say. 

22 THE COURT: And we all recognize that is an issue. 

23 I don't know what the Court can do to assist, but I'm not 

24 convinced the relief sought by Mr. Powell is going to be --

25 will assist us in that --
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2 

3 

4 

MR. LENHARD: Yeah. 

THE COURT: -- regard. 

MR. LENHARD: And I understand that. 

THE COURT: But -- so, if that were the issue, 

5 then that would be enough, but the concerns that I had here 

6 were -- again, just to make clear, where the problem comes 

7 up the problem comes up and that's why I was, like, well 

8 do we need to have this contempt thing before an outcome 

9 one way or the other because, really, it's all about these 

10 accountings and the representations made and whether or not 

11 there was --

12 MR. LENHARD: Judge, I can explain because I 

13 wanted to frame the issue for you --

14 THE COURT: Okay. 

15 MR. LENHARD: -- and put it in context. And I'm 

16 going to go into now, jurisdictionally, why I think the 

17 contempt hearing is something separate and apart from what 

18 we' re doing --

19 

20 

THE COURT: Okay. 

MR. LENHARD: -- here today. Okay? And it starts 

21 with the petition that's on file. This motion, filed June 

22 3 rd , , is not a petition. The petition procedure is set out 

23 in NRS 153.031 and it defines the statutory procedure for a 

24 petition and what is to be in a petition filed in the 

25 Probate Court. 
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6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

This petition is a petition for declaratory 

judgment regarding limited interest of Trust assets. It 

has never been amended. There has never been an allegation 

in that petition concerning conversion, never an allegation 

in the petition concerning punitive damages, and never an 

allegation in that petition concerning a loss of interest 

in the Trust, itself. 

So the charging document before this Court, the 

Complaint in the civil context, does not have the prayer 

for relief that's being sought here today and that is 

11 number one. They have to amend that petition in accord 

12 with 153.031. And, if they can't, which I'm going to 

13 address in a second, that means this Court doesn't have 

14 jurisdiction to hear the case, at least that portion of the 

15 case being the damage portion. 

16 But, once the petition is filed, it's also clear 

17 under NRS 155.180 that a defendant or the objector, the 

18 person being charged in the petition, has a right to a 

19 trial on the issues of fact, has a right to a trial before 

20 the Probate Judge, not a Jury, but a right to a trial 

21 before the Probate Judge. And we have the burdens of proof 

22 that are in -- true in every civil case, either a 

23 preponderance of the evidence on general compensatory 

24 damages or clear and convincing on punitive damages. 

25 We don't have that in these proceedings today. 
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1 This is not a trial. A trial anticipates discovery, the 

2 right to prepare for trial, the right to call witnesses, 

3 the right to, basically, do what you're supposed to do. 

4 And I would cite also to you the case of Cord, 

5 C-0-R-D, versus Second Judicial District Court, found at 91 

6 Nevada 260. And I -- 553 Pacific Second 1355. It's a 1975 

7 decision, where the Supreme Court specifically discussed 

8 NRS 155.180 and determined that the Nevada Rules of Civil 

9 Procedure provide, -- basically, control these type of 

10 proceedings. 

11 So, jurisdictionally right now, this motion is not 

12 only premature, it's improperly broad. These sisters, the 

13 movants, have to go back and amend their petition and, if 

14 they want to conduct discovery and prepare for trial, we'll 

15 do it and we'll try these issues in the proper fashion and 

16 the proper form. What they are attempting to do, 

17 basically, is circumvent the statutory and constitutional 

18 requirements by way of this motion. I would assume the 

19 Court will not allow that. 

20 A lot has been made in this motion. And I will 

21 address some of the merits of the motion, even though, 

22 procedurally, I think we're not properly here today. First 

23 is the no-contest clause, itself. You have been led to 

24 believe by this motion that, somehow, the no-contest clause 

25 is in full force and effect and somehow Ms. Ahern has 
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1 waived her rights under the Trust. 

2 As the Court's well aware, first and foremost, Ms. 

3 Ahern, statutorily and under the language of the Trust, 

4 itself, had a right to challenge the language of the Trust. 

5 I'll call attention to the Court to the tenth clause of the 

6 Trust, which is the no-contest provisions: 

7 The grantor specifically desired that these Trusts 

8 created herein be administered and distributed without 

9 litigation or a dispute of any kind. 

10 And then it goes on to read: Or attack, oppose, 

11 or seek to set aside the administration and 

12 distribution of said Trust or to have the same declared 

13 null and void. 

14 Then we have the statutory scheme, which providers 

15 under 163.00195: 

16 Enforcement of no-contest clauses. 

17 So the Legislature's weighed in on this very 

18 issue. And what's the Legislature tell us in subsection 3: 

19 Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, in 

20 the Trust a beneficiary share must not be reduced or 

21 eliminated if the beneficiary seeks only to obtain a 

22 Court ruling with respect to the construction or legal 

23 effect of the Trust. 

24 Also, under sub 4 of this statute, there is 

25 specific language: 
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2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

A Trust -- notwithstanding a provision to the 

contrary in the Trust, a beneficiary share must not be 

reduced or eliminated under a no-contest clause in a 

Trust because the beneficiary institutes legal action 

seeking to invalidate a Trust, any document referenced 

in or affected by the Trust, or any other Trust related 

instrument, if the legal action is instituted in good 

faith and based on probable cause. 

What did you rule when you eventually ruled on the 

10 summary judgment? You ruled it was in good faith. So that 

11 provision of the no-contest clause and that provision of 

12 the statute takes that argument away. 

13 So what do they come in with? They now argue 

14 that, somehow, she has attacked the Trust because she has 

15 engaged in misdeeds, because she has not acted properly as 

16 a Trustee. That is not what this Trust says. They're 

17 asking you to add language to the Trust document, itself, 

18 and hold that the no-contest clause, which does not contain 

19 that language, now does contain language that, if you act 

20 poorly as a Trustee, you've waived your right to be a 

21 beneficiary of the Trust. 

22 They're also asking you to add language to Chapter 

23 163, which would say, if you act poorly as a trustee, a no-

24 contest clause would be invoked. The Legislature didn't do 

25 that. So they're asking you to legislate by adding 
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1 language to the Chapter 163, as well as now be a Trustor 

2 and add language to the Trust. That's not the role of the 

3 Court. So the no-contest clause, as far as we're 

4 concerned, should not be before this Court today. So --

5 

6 

7 

THE COURT: Can I -­

MR. LENHARD: -- now 

THE COURT: -- just comment on a no-contest clause 

8 very briefly? 

9 

10 

MR. LENHARD: Uh-huh. 

THE COURT: I'm not going to say you're absolutely 

11 entitled to a trial on a no-contest clause because the only 

12 decision on the will and trust no-contest clause language 

13 is a case where I got upheld, but I think it's just a slip 

14 decision. But I'll give the name of it: Rogler. R-0-G-L-

15 E-R. Ms. 

16 MR. LENHARD: R --

17 THE COURT: -- Rogler 

18 MR. LENHARD: -- 0 -- Rogler? 

19 THE COURT: Rogler. Ms. Rogler, a attorney in 

20 another jurisdiction, I forget where, was suing her family 

21 trust. R-0-G-L-E-R. 

22 

23 

MR. LENHARD: Okay. 

THE COURT: It was crazy. One of the sisters took 

24 this dad to -- it was all very nuts. But Ms. Rogler was a 

25 serial litigant in numerous states, always representing 
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1 herself. She may remind you of other people who have 

2 pursued lots of prose litigation in this jurisdiction. 

3 Janice Hayes is coming to mind. 

4 I exercise -- I said that they could exercise a 

5 no-contest clause on a summary judgment motion and the 

6 Supreme Court said, yes, you can. You can grant summary 

7 judgment on a no-contest clause. But it's 

8 evidence there and that was the whole point. 

there was no 

She was never 

9 able to prove anything. So I'll just tell you: Rogler 

10 versus Millard. M-I-L-L-A-R-D. 

11 So I'm not saying you are absolutely entitled to a 

12 trial on a no-contest clause. Technically, I -- you know, 

13 I have been upheld and granted summary judgment on this, 

14 but it was under very unique circumstances and I'm not 

15 convinced that we're there yet. That's why I said all 

16 along, I understand you may not feel that we need to have a 

17 hearing on the contempt issue and that would be at all 

18 relevant here, but I don't know. I'm just -- to me -- this 

19 just seems to me really premature. 

20 MR. LENHARD: I didn't bring the motion. 

21 THE COURT: I know. 

22 MR. LENHARD: I'm just defending it. 

23 THE COURT: I 

24 MR. LENHARD: I happen 

25 THE COURT: I know --
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6 

7 

MR. LENHARD: -- to agree. 

THE COURT: that Mr. Powell, having lived this 

tortured history, -- as he pointed out, not just from 2003 

[sic], but actually from 2009, this has gone on. There's a 

lot of history here, but I'm not convinced that it's 

appropriate at this point in time for summary judgment. 

MR. LENHARD: Well, let me -- I'm still focused 

8 right now on the no-contest clause, not the damages aspect, 

9 

10 

11 

THE COURT: Right. 

MR. LENHARD: -- to this, which I'm going to get 

12 to in a moment. But the no-contest clause, again, and 

13 I'm not saying it's a jury issue, by the way, or a factual 

14 issue. The language that they're seeking to enforce --

15 because, like I said, there's been a good faith rule, so I 

16 think we have the statutory protection there. But the 

17 language they're seeking to enforce is this attack 

18 business. She behaved poorly and, therefore, we can attack 

19 the no-contest provision because it's an attack on the 

20 Trust. 

21 That is not what the Trust says and that's not 

22 what the Legislature says in Chapter 163. They don't cite 

23 one case that holds that way. And there's a reason why 

24 they don't cite one case that holds that way, because no 

25 such case exists. 
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1 And what they're asking you to do -- and I'm 

2 suggesting, again, I think that would be in excess of your 

3 jurisdiction. They're asking you to rewrite the statute 

4 and rewrite the Trust to satisfy what they want on their 

5 no-contest argument. 

6 THE COURT: Okay. 

7 MR. LENHARD: Now, the damages portion of this is 

8 somewhat troubling to me because now we're talking about 

9 assessing significant damages without the benefit of any 

10 trial, starting first with the conversion claims and the 

11 excuse me, the treble damages claims. First of all, as 

12 they acknowledged in their pleading, treble damages -- the 

13 treble damage claims are a Trust asset. In other words, 

14 the party to bring a treble damage claim is Fred Waid, not 

15 the sisters. They're not the proper party here. 

16 Secondly, this is a declaratory relief action. 

17 Remember that petition I talked about a few minutes ago 

18 that's never been amended? This is not a declaratory 

19 relief action seeking damages. This is not a declaratory 

20 relief action seeking punitive damages. So how are we to 

21 assess damages on a motion, when the original petition 

22 doesn't even ask for damages? 

23 Finally, we're talking about conversion. Do we 

24 have a legal conversion here? I'm just raising the 

25 questions. I think we're premature on all these issues 
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1 without discovery in an actual trial. 

2 

3 good. 

But can you convert money? Money's a fungible 

The only way you can convert money in most 

4 jurisdictions is if it was a specific, defined pile of 

5 money with an X on it or whatever. 

6 fungible good and it's not subject 

THE COURT: But isn't --

Otherwise, it's a 

MR. LENHARD: -- to conversion. 

7 

8 

9 THE COURT: that Mr. Powell's point, is that we 

10 knew what the money was here, it was the proceeds of the 

11 MR. LENHARD: It's a 

12 THE COURT: -- 65 percent? That's a specific 

13 MR. LENHARD: That has 

14 THE COURT: -- amount. 

15 MR. LENHARD: -- been litigated so many times. 

16 And, when we get ready for it, we'll brief the heck of 

17 that. 

18 

19 

THE COURT: Okay. 

MR. LENHARD: -- because I've done a lot of 

20 banking work. I've been down this road before. 

THE COURT: Okay. 

MR. LENHARD: I'm ready for that. 

THE COURT: Okay. 

--

21 

22 

23 

24 MR. LENHARD: But we're not -- I would hope we're 

25 not deciding that today. 
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THE COURT: Okay. 1 

2 MR. LENHARD: It's not -- money is not a specific 

3 chattel, is the point. But what we're talking about really 

4 is income from the oil wells, income to the Trust that was 

5 not accounted for properly. That's a contract claim. 

6 That's a breach of contract claim. She has to repay it 

7 once Mr. Waid decides what the amount is. That's what 

8 we're talking about here. 

9 THE COURT: Well, it's also her breach of duties 

10 as a Trustee because these investments were not prudent --

11 MR. LENHARD: It may be, 

12 THE COURT: -- at a --

13 MR. LENHARD: -- but those 

14 THE COURT: -- minimum. 

15 MR. LENHARD: -- are factual issues that'll have 

16 to be decided. Won't they? Can you decide that on a 

17 motion today? I'm glad he sees the humor in this. I 

18 don't. 

19 THE COURT: Well, --

20 MR. POWELL: Could I talk at any point of this? 

21 THE COURT: Frankly, 

22 MR. POWELL: Because I --

23 MR. LENHARD: Well, wait --

24 MR. POWELL: -- thought --

25 MR. LENHARD: -- a minute. 
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9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

MR. POWELL: -- this was -­

MR. LENHARD: Hold on here. 

MR. POWELL: -- my petition. 

MR. LENHARD: It's my turn. 

MR. POWELL: I thought it was 

MR. LENHARD: It's my --

MR. POWELL: -- my petition. 

MR. LENHARD: turn to talk. 

MR. POWELL: Not your turn. 

THE COURT: Okay. Yes, 

MR. POWELL: It's my --

THE COURT: -- it is. 

MR. POWELL: -- petition. You asked him for 

14 procedural -- and he's gone now 15 minutes into --

15 THE COURT: Yeah. 

16 MR. POWELL: -- the substance and the meat of the 

17 petition. 

18 THE COURT: Right. Yeah. 

19 MR. LENHARD: Is this 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. POWELL: It's --

MR. LENHARD: -- the law -­

MR. POWELL: -- my petition. 

MR. LENHARD: -- of the jungle here or do -­

THE COURT: Okay. 

MR. LENHARD: -- counsel 
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3 

THE COURT: Thank you. 

MR. LENHARD: -- speak in their turns? 

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Powell. I 

4 understand that you would like an opportunity to be heard, 

5 

6 

so -- and we're going to do that right now. So, 

could -- if we could -- that is -- it is my view. 

if you 

I just 

7 think, of all of these issues, -- I appreciate your 

8 argument on them, Mr. Lenhard, but my -- I -- to me, I'm 

9 just trying to figure out, procedurally, where we are. 

10 And I don't disagree with you. I do believe that 

11 all of these issues -- as I said, I know it's frustrating 

12 for the parties who've lived this, who have been fighting 

13 this battle for years and years and years and years, long 

14 before either of us were involved, find this very 

15 frustrating to not be able to get to this point. I just 

16 think it's premature. 

17 MR. LENHARD: Frustration is not due process, 

18 Judge. Whether they're frustrated with her or not, 

19 frustrated with me or not, frustrated with Ms. Peterson or 

20 not or the plethora of lawyers that have been in this 

21 courtroom, there are trial requirements here --

22 THE COURT: Right. 

23 THE COURT: and I'm just suggesting to the 

24 Court: Put aside your frustration. Put aside that and 

25 take a hard look at -- we're talking about millions of 
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1 dollars in damages --

2 THE COURT: Right. 

3 MR. LENHARD: -- on an unverified pleading. 

4 THE COURT: And that is my concern, Mr. Powell, 

5 and as -- I would acknowledge the frustration because, as I 

6 pointed out, Ms. Ahern's daughters have come before this 

7 Court very early on and identified what the problem was and 

8 I think it's been acknowledged that forces not present in 

9 Court may have influenced the Trustee's action, the former 

10 Trustee's actions. 

11 And, because of that, we're all now in this 

12 situation where Mr. Waid has an obligation to everybody to 

13 try to marshal their assets and get them in order so that 

14 it can be turned over. And he's being frustrated in that. 

15 And, yes, some of this is, ultimately, possibly, going to 

16 come down to Ms. Ahern's responsibility because she allowed 

17 herself to be influenced by people who may not have had her 

18 best interest at heart and certainly did not have the best 

19 interests of the other beneficiaries at heart. I mean, 

20 that's -- I understand Mr. Lenhard's position we shouldn't 

21 be prejudging these things, but it seems pretty clear. 

22 So that's my concern, though, is that, if you're 

23 going to say, because of what appears -- I mean, very 

24 clearly, if it were just there was a false report made 

25 when an accounting was made of the Marquis Aurbach 
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1 accounting. It was just -- clearly there was no factual 

2 support for that accounting. 

3 It was fraudulent, for lack of a better term. 

4 There's just, like, -- it just -- there was no evidence 

5 that anything in that accounting was true. 

6 MR. POWELL: I --

7 THE COURT: I don't 

8 MR. POWELL: -- would --

9 THE COURT: -- think --

10 MR. POWELL: -- go beyond 

11 THE COURT: I don't --

12 MR. POWELL: -- that, Your 

13 THE COURT: -- think --

14 MR. POWELL: -- Honor, --

15 THE COURT: I don't think Mr. Waid's been able to 

16 confirm anything. So 

17 MR. POWELL: Your Honor, it's -- and what he --

18 but here's what he has been able to confirm, Your Honor, 

19 and this -- above else, this is the crux of it: Two plus 

20 two equals four, which is, the day Mr. Waid took over that 

21 Wells Fargo account, which -- at the time, you'd already 

22 made the ruling Jacqueline and Kathryn were entitled to 

23 their 65 percent. 

24 So Mr. Waid takes over. Their expectation, 

25 completely reasonable, is that we're going to be getting 2 
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1 point blank million dollars. There was 9000 and --

2 

3 

THE COURT: I understand. 

MR. POWELL: -- change in that. That is the 

4 issue. The fraudulent accounting, all of that, that's part 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

of the analysis. The bottom line is there was not the 

money where there was supposed to be. 

THE COURT: Right. 

MR. POWELL: They can argue until the cows come 

home about due process. Where is the due process for 

Jacqueline and Kathryn when they've lived this nightmare 

for two plus years? They've had the financial torment. 

They've had the emotional torment. Where's their due 

process in this? 

THE COURT: I understand. 

15 MR. POWELL: What -- due process, oh, well, you 

16 can't do this. You can't do that. Why did Ms. Ahern have 

17 $9,000 in an account that should have had over $2,000,000 

18 on the day that Mr. Waid took over? Where's that due 

19 process? 

20 Oh, you can't come after us without notifying us. 

21 Where was the notification to Jacqueline and Kathryn that 

22 there wasn't 2 point X million dollars for them the day Mr. 

23 Waid took over? Imagine getting the phone call from Mr. 

24 Waid, saying: Sorry to tell you. There's not the 2 point 

25 X that you anticipated were there. There's 9,000 and 
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1 change in this account. Where is the equity, I guess, in 

2 that? 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 It's a 

Where's the fairness? Where's the --

THE COURT: I --

MR. POWELL: -- reasonableness in 

THE COURT: I understand. 

MR. POWELL: -- that? 

THE COURT: I understand and I agree, Mr. Powell. 

I'm not saying it's not a serious concern, it's 

9 not a big problem. And Mr. Waid has been working 

10 assiduously and I think Mr. Lenhard's point is they've been 

11 trying to cooperate. 

12 There may have been, as I said, influences that 

13 led to some of these funds being misdirected in a way that, 

14 I think, that we all would view -- and I think I've said 

15 previously, I don't think that was a prudent investment, 

16 whoever these fidelity people were. So we've got all these 

17 issues and --

18 

19 

20 

21 

MR. POWELL: What --

THE COURT: I understand 

MR. POWELL: I 

THE COURT: we've got all these issues, but 

22 I'm not -- the point is: Is Ms. Ahern allowed to put on 

23 any kind of a defense? I don't know what her defense would 

24 be. I don't 

25 MR. POWELL: That's my --
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2 

THE COURT: -- know. 

MR. POWELL: -- point, Your Honor. I don't know 

3 what -- I can't present to you 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

THE COURT: But 

MR. POWELL: firsthand knowledge of anything. 

My knowledge is based on Mr. Waid's verified report to this 

Court. 

THE COURT: Right. 

9 MR. POWELL: I can't verify any of this. As Mr. 

10 Moody said, Mr. Waid is more than happy right now to take 

11 the stand and to give you testimony under oath as to what 

12 he has discovered. 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

THE COURT: Right. And I -­

MR. POWELL: I don't 

THE COURT: think that's what 

MR. POWELL: -- have that 

THE COURT: -- we have to 

MR. POWELL: -- information, 

THE COURT: I think that's 

MR. POWELL: -- other than 

THE COURT: -- what we --

MR. POWELL: -- what --

THE COURT: -- have --

MR. POWELL: -- he's reported and -­

THE COURT: I think --
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3 

4 

MR. POWELL: -- what --

THE COURT: -- that's what 

MR. POWELL: -- communication 

THE COURT: -- we have to -- I think that's what 

5 we have to have. We have to have an opportunity to be 

6 heard because, as I said, we never gave Mr. Waid said, 

7 okay, Mr. Waid: Okay, Mr. Waid. Here's the deadline. And 

8 I -- he's not done. 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 ls. 

MR. POWELL: He can't 

THE COURT: He --

MR. POWELL: -- be done. 

THE COURT: He's not done. 

MR. POWELL: Can't be done. 

He can't be done. 

THE COURT: Because we don't know where the money 

So, at some point in time, we need to know what it is 

16 because, if there are damages, what are the damages? Right 

17 now I don't know if we really know what the damages would 

18 be. I don't know --

19 MR. POWELL: Well, --

20 THE COURT: -- what the 

21 MR. POWELL: -- and I've --

22 THE COURT: -- damages are 

23 MR. POWELL: -- pled, Your 

24 THE COURT: -- based on --

25 MR. POWELL: -- Honor, --
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2 

THE COURT: -- this. 

MR. POWELL: -- is that, whatever Mr. Waid would 

3 conclude, we would happily go along with that --

4 THE COURT: Right. 

5 MR. POWELL: -- because Mr Waid obviously has a 

6 duty as Trustee to make sure that he calculates all that 

7 and --

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

THE COURT: And 

MR. POWELL: reports back to this --

THE COURT: -- he'll do 

MR. POWELL: -- Court what 

THE COURT: -- a fine job. 

MR. POWELL: -- they are. 

THE COURT: Absolutely. 

MR. POWELL: We've merely asked that, whatever 

16 they are, --

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 bank, 

THE COURT: Okay. 

MR. POWELL: -- they need to be trebled. 

THE COURT: Okay. When I 

MR. POWELL: There needs --

THE COURT: -- started --

MR. POWELL: -- to be --

THE COURT: -- this --

MR. POWELL: -- punishment. 

steal the money, and then go: 
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1 going to return it without consequence. This is about 

2 consequence. 

3 THE COURT: And there --

4 MR. POWELL: You are --

5 THE COURT: -- certainly 

6 MR. POWELL: -- responsible 

7 THE COURT: -- are --

8 MR. POWELL: -- for actions, especially --

9 THE COURT: Sure. 

10 MR. POWELL: in a fiduciary capacity. Not only 

11 that, Your Honor, as Mr. Waid reported, this was after your 

12 removal of her as Trustee. After your removal, she goes in 

13 and does this. In a three-day spree, according to Mr. Waid 

14 -- not according to Jacqueline and Kathryn, according to 

15 Mr. Waid's reporting to this Court, verified there was over 

16 9,000,000 missing. Within a two week span, there was over 

17 $1,000,000 missing. Whose money was that? Jacqueline and 

18 Kathryn's money. 

19 Again, due process. Where's the due process of 

20 that? There was none. And I just want to go, for the 

21 record, back to this clarification of this shell game that 

22 we're going through of, oh, you can't just bring that 

23 petition. 

24 petition. 

25 

Your original petition was a dee relief 

Your Honor, in that dee relief petition, we asked 
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1 for damages in a very broad category of -- we want all 

2 damages that this has triggered. How can I plead specific 

3 damages when I don't know, after you've removed Ms. Ahern, 

4 that there's money missing and that, all along, while Ms. 

5 Ahern is Trustee, there's money missing? How can I not 

6 know? Well, Ms. Ahern says, under penalty of perjury to 

7 this Court: 

8 dandy. 

Here's my accounting. Everything is fine and 

9 THE COURT: And that's why Judge Gonzalez is 

10 having a hearing in two weeks. 

11 MR. POWELL: That's over, I believe, just the 

12 $500,000 issue, Your Honor. That's just one little small 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

component --

THE COURT: Right. 

MR. POWELL: -- of this. 

THE COURT: So -- and that's 

said, I think -- this lS a really big 

MR. POWELL: It's a 

THE COURT: -- want to 

MR. POWELL: -- huge problem. 

why I'm -- like I 

problem. I don't 

18 

19 

20 

21 THE COURT: I don't want to minimize this and I 

22 want everybody to understand I take this very seriously. 

23 This is a really big problem. And -- so that's why I said 

24 we have to acknowledge that her daughters came in three 

25 years ago and said: We've got a problem here. Somebody is 
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1 influencing our mother to act in a way that is totally 

2 inconsistent with 30 years of family history. 

3 MR. POWELL: Correct. 

4 THE COURT: They told us. 

5 MR. POWELL: Yeah. 

6 THE COURT: And it's all been borne out. Mr. Waid 

7 came in and said: We've got a problem here. I can't find 

8 this money and my obligation is to everybody. 

9 Ms. Ahern is his client -- is his beneficiary, 

10 well. He's got to exercise his duties to everybody and 

11 wants to do that. And all he wants to do is get this in 

12 good shape so he can turn it back over because, as I've 

13 said before, this family has managed their affairs very 

14 efficiently for generations. 

as 

he 

15 And I don't think Mr. Waid ever anticipated when 

16 he took this on what this was going to entail. I certainly 

17 didn't. I wouldn't have saddled somebody with this if we'd 

18 had any concept of how bad this situation is. 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

MR. POWELL: But, Your Honor, if 

THE COURT: It's a --

MR. POWELL: -- you didn't 

THE COURT: -- really big deal. 

MR. POWELL: If you didn't, we would have never 

24 known. We would have never --

25 THE COURT: Correct. 
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1 MR. POWELL: -- known what actually was --

2 THE COURT: True. 

3 MR. POWELL: -- going on 

4 THE COURT: That's a --

5 MR. POWELL: -- behind the 

6 THE COURT: -- good point. 

7 MR. POWELL: -- curtain, Your Honor. 

8 THE COURT: That's a good point, but here's my 

9 thing: The consequences of that -- because we -- it's 

10 happened. The consequences of that are what you're now 

11 seeking and my problem with this has been, is this 

12 something that we can decide on a summary judgment? 

13 As I told Mr. Lenhard in the past, I have been 

14 upheld when I have granted a request to exercise a no-

15 contest clause and disinherit somebody on summary judgment 

16 motion. I -- you can do it. I have done it before and 

17 I've been upheld. So I know that that statute -- the Court 

18 will upheld summary judgment on that. 

19 My position, and it's what I asked at the 

20 beginning, is I didn't think I was there, that I had enough 

21 evidence before me today to be able to say: Yes. I'm 

22 going to exercise that power. Because I don't know -- as I 

23 said before, I believed at the time that this was just a 

24 good faith dispute over who's entitled to the 65 percent. 

25 Spending the -- spending or transferring the money 
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1 is a different problem. And that's why I don't think I 

2 have enough information on that. We know it happened, but 

3 I need more information on it and I just think right now 

4 that this is premature and I'm not saying that I -- it's 

5 I'm not saying that it's something that you cannot decide 

6 on summary judgment, because I've done before and I've been 

7 upheld. 

8 I'm just saying I don't think we have enough 

9 information on those aspects of -- what's the basis for me 

10 to exercise that no-contest clause and cut off Ms. Ahern, 

11 not just from the 65 percent, which I've already said isn't 

12 hers, but from her original 35 percent. What has she done 

13 that would violate her right to her 35 percent that her 

14 father gave her, I don't -- like, 40 years or something? 

15 I mean, it was a long time ago that she was given 

16 that by her father. It -- does this operate to disinherit 

17 her from that because she didn't properly act as a Trustee 

18 for her daughters? That's the problem I've got with this 

19 thing. 

20 MR. POWELL: Well, and that's what the crux of 

21 this is all going to boil down to. 

22 THE COURT: Yeah. 

23 MR. POWELL: And I can't present to you --

24 THE COURT: And that's --

25 MR. POWELL: any more evidence, Your Honor. 
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1 You're -- you are tasked with looking at the document as 

2 it's read and then making a logical conclusion, is that if 

3 a Trustee, who is also a beneficiary goes to the lengths to 

4 take what is not theirs, also defying the Court order, 

5 that's besides the point, but is put in a position of 

6 trust, a fiduciary position, takes assets that don't belong 

7 to her, -- and I -- and, again, Mr. Lenhard commented on my 

8 laughing. I'll comment on his laughing. 

THE COURT: Right. 9 

10 MR. POWELL: I'm not sure, again, what is not 

11 being understood that I can't tell you what went on with 

12 the banks. What I can tell you is what Mr. Waid has 

13 reported. Mr. Waid and --

14 THE COURT: Right. 

15 MR. POWELL: -- if we're going to use the 

16 opportunity, why not -- let's put Mr. Waid on the stand 

17 right now and --

18 THE COURT: Because I'm --

19 MR. POWELL: -- you could --

20 THE COURT: -- catching an --

21 MR. POWELL: -- question him --

22 THE COURT: -- airplane in --

23 MR. POWELL: -- on your own. 

24 THE COURT: -- an hour. 

25 MR. POWELL: What's that? 
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1 THE COURT: We're not going to do it today. I'm 

2 catching an airplane in an hour. 

3 MR. POWELL: Okay. 

4 THE COURT: So --

5 MR. POWELL: Understood. 

6 THE COURT: -- we're not doing it today. 

7 MR. POWELL: Understood. 

8 THE COURT: But here's the thing: I -- that's an 

9 issue for me. What exactly -- and at what point is Mr. 

10 Waid going to say, I'm going to have to throw up my hands, 

11 I can do no more for you, here's what I've been able to 

12 reconstruct? He may be there today. He may not be there 

13 today. I don't know. We didn't ask Mr. Moody that. 

14 Mr. Moody will get a chance to tell us, but that's my 

15 position, 

MR. POWELL: Sure. 

So 

16 

17 THE COURT: -- is that, for me, I can't get to 

18 what are the damages, if any, 

19 MR. POWELL: Sure. 

20 THE COURT: -- before we know Mr. Waid can say, 

21 yes, I can tell you exactly. I can trace this for you. 

22 can lay it all out. Here are the records. Here's how 

23 everything happened. Here's when it happened, because 

24 that's significant. 

25 MR. POWELL: Your Honor, that's all contained in 
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1 that report, which Mr. Waid is verifying for the Court. I 

2 don't know -- what I am just telling you, and also --

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

THE COURT: I'm 

MR. POWELL: opposing counsel, is 

THE COURT: I believe --

MR. POWELL: -- I can't 

THE COURT: -- that Mr. 

MR. POWELL: offer --

THE COURT: Waid has done more since then and 

10 has actually recovered more. Mr. Moody, am I correct that 

11 Mr. - - I 

12 MR. MOODY: Yes. There has been more money 

13 recovered since --

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

THE COURT: He's --

MR. MOODY: then. 

THE COURT: He continues to do his work. 

MR. POWELL: Oh, understandable. 

MR. MOODY: But of course. If I could just 

19 clarify a few --

20 

21 

THE COURT: Yeah. 

MR. MOODY: -- things. Number one, there is a 

22 hearing coming up in front of Judge Gonzalez on Tuesday, 

23 August 18 th
• 

24 THE COURT: Yeah. 

25 MR. MOODY: That is not the contempt hearing. 
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1 That is the hearing to consider Ms. Ahern Motion to Dismiss 

2 the --

3 

4 

MR. LENHARD: Todd, --

MR. MOODY: -- contempt hearing. 

5 MR. LENHARD: -- I think it's the contempt 

6 hearing, too. That's my understanding. 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

THE COURT: I -- that's 

MR. LENHARD: She's 

THE COURT: -- what I -­

MR. LENHARD: -- going to 

THE COURT: -- thought it 

MR. LENHARD: -- hear the 

THE COURT: -- was --

MR. LENHARD: She's going to hear the Motion to 

15 Dismiss before the contempt 

16 THE COURT: Yeah. 

17 MR. LENHARD: -- hearing and 

18 THE COURT: That's the way I 

19 MR. LENHARD: -- decide 

20 

21 

THE COURT: -- read it. 

MR. LENHARD: -- whether it goes forward. That's 

22 my understanding. 

23 

24 

THE COURT: That's the way I read it. 

MR. MOODY: Okay. From her Clerk, that's not what 

25 we understood. 
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1 

2 

3 

4 Clerk? 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

THE COURT: Okay. 

MR. MOODY: But --

MR. LENHARD: Did you talk to the JEA or the 

MR. MOODY: We will do that because that was not -

THE COURT: Yeah. 

MR. MOODY: -- my understanding, 

THE COURT: Because --

MR. MOODY: so --

THE COURT: I --

MR. MOODY: I'm glad to get that 

THE COURT: That's what I'd like to know. Yeah. 

MR. LENHARD: And you'd better -- we'd like to 

15 know that, too, I guess. 

THE COURT: So, if 

MR. MOODY: Yeah. 

16 

17 

18 THE COURT: -- the parties can clarify that for 

19 the Court and then -- yeah. So I -- it 

20 has continued to work because, since he 

MR. MOODY: Well, --

I know Mr. Waid 

21 

22 THE COURT: -- made his initial report, I think 

23 more money has been -- which triggered the whole contempt 

24 thing because that's when I was like, oh my gosh, we --

25 you've got to do something about this. 
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1 MR. MOODY: Yeah. That hearing, if it goes 

2 forward on that day, is limited to the 500,000 --

3 THE COURT: Right. 

4 MR. MOODY: -- that was represented to be with 

5 Fidelity Capital. 

6 THE COURT: Right. 

7 MR. MOODY: And the -- you know, it's limited to 

8 this Court's Order to Show Cause, as to why that was not 

9 transferred. Mr. Waid continues to work. We have 

10 subpoenaed former counsel and asked for their records. We 

11 may have a hearing coming up in front of you, Your Honor, 

12 based on one of those. 

13 There's a former attorney in Texas, who we've had 

14 to go to Texas, open a separate case in order to get that 

15 information. And, understandably, Ms. Ahern, until this 

16 contempt hearing is resolved, isn't answering any 

17 questions, --

18 

19 

THE COURT: Well, of course not. 

MR. MOODY: -- exercising her Fifth Amendment 

20 privilege. So we're doing what we can under the 

21 circumstances. 

22 THE COURT: Right. 

23 MR. MOODY: There's still more to learn, but we're 

24 working tirelessly. Mr. Waid, I don't know if you have 

25 anything to add to that. 
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1 MR. WAID: Your Honor, I'm just in that unique 

2 position. I'm trying to fulfill what the Court wants --

3 THE COURT: Acknowledged. Absolutely. 

4 MR. WAID: -- and balance my obligations to both 

5 Ms. Ahern --

6 THE COURT: Absolutely. 

7 MR. WAID: -- and the other daughters. 

8 THE COURT: It's a very difficult position. I 

9 appreciate that. 

10 MR. WAID: And I -- just for the record, too, I am 

11 holding, I am distributing, the 65 percent on current 

12 income and I am holding Ms. Ahern's sort of in trust, as 

13 part of what I've considered -- until this Court gives me 

14 further instructions. 

15 

16 

THE COURT: Right. 

MR. WAID: I don't believe there's a formal order 

17 in place, but I think the Court -- the record would reflect 

18 effectively there is a constructive trust over her issues -

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

THE COURT: Right. 

MR. WAID: -- while the pendency of these things -

THE COURT: Because that's this whole -­

MR. WAID: -- carry out. 

THE COURT: -- ultimate outcome of what Mr. Powell 
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1 seeks, is either a surcharge or to disinherit her from 

2 that. We have to make that determination. And, as I said, 

3 disinheriting somebody from something that they were given 

4 in their own capacity as their own or their own trust, 

5 or whatever you'd want to call it, years, decades ago. I 

6 don't -- that's a big job. 

7 Surcharging's a little bit different and I think 

8 that's Mr. Waid's point, is he's holding that, pending 

9 being told do I surcharge? What am I supposed to be doing? 

10 I -- and, as was pointed out by Mr. Moody, we're not going 

11 to get any testimony from Ms. Ahern until she's no longer 

12 under this threat of criminal proceedings because she 

13 can't. 

14 

15 

MR. WAID: Your Honor, if I could point out 

THE COURT: And it's just -- to me, this -- I just 

16 can't see how we can go forward with this. 

17 MR. WAID: But -- and I want all the parties to 

18 know I will be very hesitant to file a final report --

19 THE COURT: Right. 

20 MR. WAID: -- until and unless I can visit with 

21 her and fill in some of the gaps 

22 THE COURT: Right. 

23 MR. WAID: -- on the questions --

24 THE COURT: Right. 

25 MR. WAID: -- because my conversations with many 
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1 of the former parties who've been involved, they either 

2 can't, because of a privilege, answer my question, won't my 

3 answer the question, or simply don't have the information. 

4 And so she may be the only source. So I want to be very 

5 clear. Regardless of these Courts rulings, I'm going to 

6 need that information, or I'm going to state it exactly 

7 that 

THE COURT: Right. 8 

9 MR. WAID: -- inclusive for the following reasons: 

10 Here's the money trail. But, even then, there is the rest 

11 of the story that goes behind that. 

12 THE COURT: And these are all the reason why 

13 and I appreciate, as I've said repeatedly, Mr. Powell, the 

14 frustration of her daughters, of yourself as counsel, that 

15 this has been a lengthy and time-consuming battle, and not 

16 to mention expensive. And it's also a very unfortunate and 

17 unpleasant situation because this is family. And it's 

18 terrible the situation that they're in. And I feel for 

19 them. 

20 I'm not sure how much of it can be solved by 

21 Court. It's certainly, I'm sure, is a very difficult 

22 position for the Trustee because he's trying -- he wants to 

23 help all of them get their assets marshaled so they can go 

24 forward because this has been -- as I said, it's provided 

25 for this family for generations and it's so unfortunate 
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1 that we're here today and this all has been interrupted. 

2 And, you know, whether it's because of these 

3 people who aren't here who led Ms. Ahern astray, I don't 

4 know. We're going to have to find that out and that's why 

5 I said I just don't see how I can go forward on the record 

6 before me today. 

7 Our next available opportunity is November 16 th
, 

8 the week of November 16 th for an evidentiary hearing. I 

9 don't know if that's enough time for Mr. -- we, hopefully, 

10 will get past whatever's going to happen with Judge 

11 Gonzalez. Maybe that gives Mr. Waid a couple more months 

12 after that to see what he can put together for us. And 

13 then we can hear it. 

14 As I said before, I'm not convinced you can only 

15 do this on an evidentiary hearing because I have, in the 

16 past, granted -- where there's -- where there is no 

17 evidence, no dispute as to evidence, no-contest clause 

18 enforcement. It's a pretty -- you know, there is a pretty 

19 steep hill to get up on no-contest clauses. 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. POWELL: Your Honor, I just -­

MR. LENHARD: May I --

MR. POWELL: -- want to 

MR. LENHARD: speak? Am I allowed to speak --

THE COURT: In a minute here. 

MR. LENHARD: All right. 
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1 THE COURT: So I'm just going to talk about it 

2 now. I can't -- the next opportunity would be the week of 

3 November 16 th and I think --

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

MR. POWELL: That's fine, 

THE COURT: -- that 

MR. POWELL: -- Your Honor. 

THE COURT: gives 

MR. POWELL: I just want 

THE COURT: us --

MR. POWELL: -- to make it clear -­

THE COURT: -- like --

MR. POWELL: -- that I can't --

THE COURT: [indiscernible] months. 

MR. POWELL: I don't have anything more, even 

15 though I've --

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

THE COURT: Correct. 

MR. POWELL: -- been charged with, oh, -­

THE COURT: I --

MR. POWELL: I've pled improperly --

THE COURT: No. No. 

MR. POWELL: and this and that. 

THE COURT: No, Mr. 

MR. POWELL: I have nothing more -­

THE COURT: No. 

MR. POWELL: to do or can do here. 
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1 THE COURT: I need to know -- like I said, I don't 

2 know what the damages will be 

3 MR. POWELL: Sure. 

4 THE COURT: -- until such time as Mr. Waid says: 

5 I can do no more. 

6 MR. POWELL: Sure. 

7 THE COURT: I cannot report any more to the Court. 

8 I've done everything I can to try to marshal these assets 

9 for all the beneficiaries. 

10 

11 

12 fashion. 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 expected 

21 

22 

MR. POWELL: Sure. 

THE COURT: And I'm holding him in the following 

MR. POWELL: I understand, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: We need that. 

MR. POWELL: And that's why we pled -­

THE COURT: We need that. 

MR. POWELL: -- the way that we did -­

THE COURT: Yeah. 

MR. POWELL: -- with a general idea of what we 

THE COURT: Right. 

MR. POWELL: -- and thought should have been held 

23 as part of the 65 percent --

24 THE COURT: Right. 

25 MR. POWELL: -- and the rest we basically said: 

Page 58 

AA1082



1 This is our best --

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 done. 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

THE COURT: Okay. 

MR. POWELL: good faith answer 

THE COURT: All right. Fine. 

MR. POWELL: in terms of that. 

THE COURT: Thank you. 

MR. POWELL: I just --

THE COURT: All right. 

MR. POWELL: want to 

THE COURT: We're done. 

MR. POWELL: I just want to make --

THE COURT: No. I'm done. I just want -- I'm 

MR. POWELL: Well, I just -­

THE COURT: Any 

MR. POWELL: want to 

THE COURT: -- final 

MR. POWELL: -- ask you, procedurally, do I -- do 

19 -- Mr. Lenhard is arguing so I don't want to have this 

20 issue come November 19 th
• What I have pled and the way in -

21 - I have pled it, do you feel as though I need to redo 

22 anything because I'm not 

23 

24 

THE COURT: No. 

MR. POWELL: understanding. As a trust case, I 

25 can plead whatever I want, --
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1 THE COURT: Right. 

2 MR. POWELL: -- just as the other side can plead 

3 whatever they want. 

4 THE COURT: Right. 

5 MR. POWELL: You have jurisdiction, --

6 THE COURT: It's 

7 MR. POWELL: -- which is unlimited --

8 THE COURT: Exactly. 

9 MR. POWELL: -- jurisdiction over the Trust in 

10 every aspect. 

11 THE COURT: Right. 

12 MR. POWELL: Okay? 

13 THE COURT: Yeah. I don't think that we need 

14 anything more. I mean, --

15 MR. POWELL: Okay. 

16 THE COURT: -- this is just further to the whole 

17 issue of there were orders in place, which have apparently 

18 been violated. 

19 MR. POWELL: Sure. 

20 THE COURT: What's the result of the fact that 

21 those orders were --

22 MR. POWELL: Right. And, 

23 THE COURT: -- were 

24 MR. POWELL: -- again, 

25 THE COURT: -- violated. 
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1 MR. POWELL: -- just for purposes of the record, 

2 the initial petition, the dee relief, --

3 

4 

THE COURT: Yeah. 

MR. POWELL: said: We don't know the full 

5 extent of the damages. 

6 

7 

THE COURT: Correct. 

MR. POWELL: We're pleading them and asking for 

8 them anyway to reserve our right because we don't know --

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

THE COURT: Yeah. 

MR. POWELL: -- what the full extent of the damage 

THE COURT: Absolutely. 

MR. POWELL: -- lS here. Okay. 

THE COURT: Understood. Understood. 

MR. POWELL: Thank you, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: Thank you. Mr. Lenhard, any questions 

about that? I think that a hearing the week of November 

16th lS warranted. 

Curchi 

whole 

THE CLERK: 

THE COURT: 

THE CLERK: 

[phonetic] . 

THE COURT: 

week? 

Cuchi [phonetic] is set -­

Oh is it? Cuchi [phonetic]? 

Cuchi [phonetic]. [Indiscernible.] 

Curchi [phonetic]. They gave them the 

[Colloquy between the Court and the Clerk] 
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1 THE COURT: The -- what about the first couple 

2 days of the Thanksgiving week, the Monday/Tuesday? 

3 [Colloquy between the Court and the Clerk] 

4 

5 time. 

6 

7 

8 

see --

THE COURT: Oh, that's right. We gave them that 

THE CLERK: I mean, we could do a status check and 

THE COURT: Or you know what we could do? Because 

9 the week before I'm not going to be here a lot of that week 

10 -- I'd -- we'd have Monday, the 9 th
• 

11 

12 

13 I'm gone. 

14 

THE CLERK: Of November? 

THE COURT: Right. Because the 11 th
, 12 th

, and 13 th 

What about Monday, the 9th ? 

THE CLERK: Oh that's -- yeah. Right before 

15 Veteran's Day? 

16 THE COURT: What about Monday, November 9 th ? 

17 Because I'm told we've already given away the week of the 

18 16th. 

19 MR. POWELL: What time would we start? Like 10 --

20 THE COURT: 9: 3 0. 

21 MR. POWELL: a. m.? What's that? 

22 THE COURT: 10. 10. 10. l0's good. 

23 MR. POWELL: Okay. 

24 THE COURT: 10 a.m? Yeah. Have a day, full day. 

25 MR. POWELL: And how long would you --
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1 THE COURT: Are you --

2 MR. POWELL: anticipate 

3 THE COURT: done, Mr. 

4 MR. WAID: No. I have a procedural question for 

5 me. If this November 9th is going to be an evidentiary 

6 hearing and, since I'm the one producing most of the 

7 evidence and I'll be on the stand, are you going to issue 

8 discovery cutoffs and deadlines? Are both -- I'd like to 

9 hear from both sides. 

10 

11 

THE COURT: Right. 

MR. WAID: Are they going to -- because I'm trying 

12 to run my parallel 

13 

14 

THE COURT: Right. 

MR. WAID: -- and are they going to be 

15 piggybacking on the people that I may be deposing and other 

16 issues? I don't want to run two different tracks 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

THE COURT: Correct. 

MR. WAID: -- because I've -- I do have other 

cases and --

THE COURT: Absolutely. Understood. 

MR. WAID: I just don't know that I can get it 

done. We're getting a lot 

THE COURT: All right. 

MR. WAID: of resistance in Texas and I can't 

reasonably predict how fast that's going to be --
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1 

2 

3 

THE COURT: Well, -­

MR. WAID: -- resolved. 

THE COURT: Right. We have until the -- after the 

4 -- I don't know if they're going to be in a position to 

5 comment until after they -- August 18 th hearing, whatever 

6 that hearing's on. But it gives you the month of September 

7 and October. 

8 MR. LENHARD: We'll certainly cooperate to the 

9 extent we're able to with Mr. Waid's discovery efforts. In 

10 fact, we'll dovetail those because I do want a trial on the 

11 merits. That's what I've asked for and, if that's what 

12 we're getting, we're happy with that. I would advise the 

13 Court that, on the no-contest provision and whether it can 

14 be resolved by summary judgment in this case, will be the 

15 subject of additional briefing, which we will file 

16 

17 

18 

19 

THE COURT: Sure. 

MR. LENHARD: -- at the end of October -­

THE COURT: Right. 

MR. LENHARD: well in advance of the hearing, 

20 serving everybody, of 

21 

22 

23 

24 60 --

25 

THE COURT: So, 

MR. LENHARD: -- course. 

THE COURT: -- if you did your discovery cutoff in 

MR. LENHARD: Well, it couldn't be 60 days because 
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1 that's literally mid-September. 

2 have to 

I think you're going to 

THE COURT: So --3 

4 MR. LENHARD: -- probably nudge it pretty close to 

5 the trial date. 

6 THE CLERK: 60 days is October 7th. 

7 THE COURT: October 7th. Yeah. So we'll move 

8 to October 16th? 

9 MR. LENHARD: That'd be fine from our side. 

10 THE COURT: And then that gives two weeks for 

11 additional -- or three weeks for additional briefing. 

12 Three weeks. 

it 

13 

14 

MR. LENHARD: I think that's three weeks. Right. 

THE COURT: Yeah. So three weeks for any -- a 

15 supplement and then a supplemental reply. 

16 MR. LENHARD: And my understanding is, if I 

17 understand what you're ruling, we'll be trying damage 

18 issues. Obviously, I guess, I assume punitive damage 

19 issues and we will still, of course, reserve our 

20 jurisdictional arguments and make them again so we 

21 THE COURT: Right. 

22 MR. LENHARD: -- preserve them for the --

23 THE COURT: Right. 

24 MR. LENHARD: -- record. 

25 THE COURT: The no-contest and surcharges 
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1 issues. Yeah. 

2 MR. LENHARD: Right. But that -- the surcharge 

3 issues and the way I read the pleading that I'm addressing 

4 here today, includes punitive damage aspects. 

5 addressing those also --

THE COURT: Sure. 

So I'll be 

6 

7 

8 

9 

MR. LENHARD: -- and we'll be addressing that in 

our pretrial brief, 

THE COURT: Right. 

10 MR. LENHARD: -- as far as the Court's authority 

11 to award punitive damages. 

12 THE COURT: Okay. 

13 MR. LENHARD: All right? 

14 THE COURT: And, --

15 MR. WAID: I just want 

16 THE COURT: -- certainly, 

17 MR. WAID: -- to make 

18 THE COURT: -- if Mr. 

19 anything because there just is 

20 parties who may not cooperate. 

it --

Waid is unable to do 

I mean, there are third­

I -- certainly, it's not a 

21 situation if he's filing a final report and asking to be 

22 dis charged. That's not what we're asking. We're just 

23 asking for evidence on these issues that have been raised 

24 because he's the third-party witness, who's 

25 MR. LENHARD: Would it help to --
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

Trial 

most 

THE COURT: going to have 

MR. LENHARD: -- have a 

THE COURT: -- the issue --

MR. LENHARD: -- status check the 

to 

THE COURT: I'm sure 

MR. LENHARD: -- see how 

THE COURT: -- it would. 

MR. LENHARD: -- Mr. Waid's 

civil cases? 

THE COURT: I'm sure -­

MR. WAID: Your Honor, -­

THE COURT: -- it would. 

doing, 

month before 

like we do in 

MR. WAID: -- if I can clarify it, I want to be 

15 real clear. My investigation and my report is going to 

16 focus on the transactional history of the Trust, following 

17 the monies. 

18 THE COURT: Right. 

19 MR. WAID: My evidence is not really tied to --

20 THE COURT: No. 

21 MR. WAID: -- the motion that's --

22 THE COURT: It's not. 

23 MR. WAID: -- pending, so that -- what I'm 

24 suggesting is I don't want to be part of whatever discovery 

25 they're going to be doing to prove-up or refute --
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1 THE COURT: Right. But he -- Mr. --

2 MR. WAID: -- their 

3 THE COURT: -- Powell 

4 MR. WAID: -- motion. 

5 THE COURT: -- is not relying on you to prove his 

6 case. Your evidence will, 

7 MR. WAID: Fair enough. 

8 THE COURT: -- of course, be relevant and it'll be 

9 an item, I'm sure, of damages. He'll they'll, no doubt, 

10 want to use your evidence and maybe call you as a witness 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

to prove its 

MR. 

THE 

MR. 

THE 

case. 

MOODY: So 

COURT: But 

MOODY: 

COURT: 

when would 

you 

this 

are not doing his case for 

16 Yeah. Nobody expects you to do that. You are in a 

him. 

17 different position. Your job is to represent both sides in 

18 helping to marshal their assets and put this Trust back 

19 into good shape to be turned over to them to run for 

20 themselves. 

21 MR. MOODY: When would the Court like Mr. Waid's 

22 supplemental accounting, whether complete or incomplete? 

23 

24 

25 

THE COURT: Same date. 

MR. MOODY: The --

THE COURT: October 
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1 MR. MOODY: By the --

2 THE COURT: 16th. 

3 MR. MOODY: cut-off? 

4 THE COURT: Yeah. 

5 MR. MOODY: October 16th. 

6 THE COURT: So do you want to have the -- a status 

7 check two days before that on the 14th? 

8 MR. LENHARD: Could we have it a week before? I 

9 mean, --

10 THE COURT: On October 7th? 

11 MR. LENHARD: Well, whatever a week before the 16th 

12 

13 THE COURT: Okay. 

14 MR. LENHARD: -- lS. 

15 THE COURT: So October 7th? 

16 MR. LENHARD: Your Honor, give us a little time to 

17 see where we are. 

THE COURT: But --18 

19 MR. WAID: I can only tell you this: We have had 

20 preliminary discussions with the Internal Revenue Service 

21 because of the prior years. I reasonably foresee that will 

22 be a fairly protracted negotiation. I've done a lot of 

23 dealings with the IRS and I don't see it getting resolved 

24 before that time frame because I don't have the cash --

25 THE COURT: Right. 
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1 MR. WAID: -- to satisfy prior years' obligations. 

2 So that's going to be a negotiated amount and, candidly, 

3 they just don't respond that quickly. We have a filing 

4 deadline in September, a extended deadline filing for 

5 personal in October. I'm -- on that aspect of the case, I 

6 probably will not get a definitive answer on how that will 

7 be addressed until first quarter of next year. 

8 THE COURT: Right. And that may well be a problem 

9 in trying to go forward in November. And 

10 

11 

MR. WAID: I --

THE COURT: they -- the -- counsel can both 

12 present their positions as to why they think we can't go 

13 forward in November, but, you know, we're going to have 

14 some sort of a hearing on this. I'm setting it for 

15 November and I'm giving you some to see if you can get 

16 there because this is the problem, that I don't know how 

17 long it's going to take Mr. Waid to reconstruct this and to 

18 recover as much as he can for all the parties, which is 

19 what he's really working to try to do. 

20 MR. POWELL: So I'm just not sure on your 

21 statement of, all the parties, because, at this point, 

22 there is no recovery that -- there is no harm to Ms. Ahern 

23 at this point, I guess, --

24 

25 

THE COURT: Right. 

MR. POWELL: -- would be the easiest way to say 
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1 this, Your Honor. So I'm not sure if -- again, if it's --

2 THE COURT: I don't know that. I don't know that 

3 Ms. Ahern's --

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

MR. POWELL: Right. 

THE COURT: -- money hasn't gone astray, as well. 

MR. POWELL: If it has, that's her personal issue, 

THE COURT: But, if you're going to -­

MR. POWELL: -- which is 

THE COURT: -- try to 

MR. POWELL: -- above and beyond --

THE COURT: If you're -- Mr. Powell, if you want -

MR. POWELL: Yeah. 

THE COURT: -- to surcharge it, -­

MR. POWELL: Yeah. 

THE COURT: -- he'd better find it for you. 

MR. POWELL: Well, what we're seeking to surcharge 

19 is, if you don't enforce the no-contest clause, --

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

THE COURT: Right. But 

MR. POWELL: -- we'd be 

THE COURT: -- that's my point. 

MR. POWELL: Yeah. 

THE COURT: That's my point. 

MR. POWELL: Okay. 
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1 THE COURT: If she's divested of her share, if 

2 she's being surcharged, you would hope Mr. Waid will have 

3 found as much as possible as -- if her own money is astray, 

4 as well. Now do you see what I'm saying? It would be --

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

MR. 

THE 

MR. 

THE 

MR. 

POWELL: 

COURT: 

POWELL: 

COURT: 

POWELL: 

Well, --

-- in everybody's 

-- I think 

-- interest 

-- that puts an onus then on him 

10 discovering something that goes above and beyond what the 

11 context of this proceeding is, which is the --

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

THE 

MR. 

THE 

MR. 

THE 

MR. 

THE 

MR. 

THE 

COURT: 

POWELL: 

COURT: 

POWELL: 

COURT: 

POWELL: 

COURT: 

POWELL: 

COURT: 

He said he's 

-- W.N. --

-- holding --

-- Connell --

He's holding 

-- Trust. 

-- her 35 percent. 

Correct. 

And I'm sure that, if he gathers her 

21 other monies, he's got to ask the Court, what will I do 

22 with this money, --

MR. WAID: Well, --23 

24 THE COURT: if some portion of it is also her 

25 money. And that's what we have to figure out. I don't 
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1 know if -- when she was transferring money, if she was 

2 transferring only the 65 percent, or she also was 

3 transferring some part of her own money. Like I said, this 

4 isn't that easy, Mr. Powell. 

5 MR. POWELL: Well, that's, again, 

6 THE COURT: I'm done. Okay? We'll see you guys 

7 all in 

8 MR. POWELL: Okay. 

9 MR. WAID: Thank you, Your Honor. 

10 THE COURT: -- October 

11 THE CLERK: October 7th 

12 THE COURT: 7th. 

13 THE CLERK: at 9 o'clock 

14 MR. LENHARD: Thank you, 

15 THE CLERK: -- for a --

16 MR. LENHARD: -- Judge. 

17 THE CLERK: -- status check. 

18 THE COURT: Yeah. Good luck. See you all then. 

19 [Off the record colloquy] 

20 

21 PROCEEDING CONCLUDED AT 11:35 A.M. 

22 * * * * * 
23 

24 

25 
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1 

2 

3 

THE COURT: Mr. Waid? 

MR. POWELL: Yeah. Mr. Waid and Mr. Moody, I 

4 think, are still over at that other hearing in -- so 

5 Department 20. 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

THE COURT: Okay. Got it. Okay. No problem. 

We'll call them another time. 

[Case trailed at 9:22 a. m. ] 

[Case recalled at 10:25 a. m. ] 

THE COURT: 066425. My computer is dead, by the 

way. Roz talked to the IT guys. It is -- no. It is dead. 

[Colloquy between the Court and the Clerk] 

THE COURT: I 

computer. It's dead. 

being paperless. It 

hope you don't need anything on the 

So -- okay. This is the joys of 

works until the computer dies. So, 

computer, but I think I've got anyway, we have a dead 

everything I need. 

All right. So, if everybody would state their 

19 appearances for the record. And I just -- I -- oh, I'm 

20 sorry. Everybody? 

21 MR. POWELL: Good morning, Your Honor. Joey 

22 Powell appearing on behalf of Katherine Bouvier and 

23 Jacqueline Montoya. Jacqueline Montoya is present in the 

24 courtroom today. 

25 THE COURT: Okay. 

Page 2 

AA1115



1 MR. MOODY: Todd Moody, bar number 5430, for Fred 

2 Waid, the Court appointed trustee who's with me here. 

THE COURT: Thank you. Okay. 3 

4 MR. LENHARD: Kirk Lenhard and Tammy Peterson, on 

5 behalf of Eleanor Ahern, who is also present today. 

6 THE COURT: Thank you. Counsel are you remaining 

7 in the case? 

8 MR. LENHARD: Temporarily. 

9 THE COURT: Never really --

10 MR. LENHARD: And I'll explain what I'm doing. 

11 THE COURT: Never really clear on that. Okay. 

12 Thank you very much. So we have two issues. One I hope 

13 I'm not thinking about these being easy and not easy in the 

14 wrong order. My -- I think the easier issue for me is this 

15 Motion to Compel the Authorization, which is a fiduciary --

16 for the fiduciary exception analysis, which, I don't know -

17 - counsel, I know you didn't take a position on this one, 

18 but I'll tell you what my position is on the fiduciary 

19 exceptions. 

20 This is what I and the Commissioner, Commissioner 

21 Bulla, do on the fiduciary exceptions, generally. It's --

22 it is an exception to the attorney-client privilege, and, 

23 you know, the case law that's been -- lays it out pretty 

24 clearly, that to the extent that the trustee is getting 

25 legal advice relevant to the administration of the trust, 
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1 there is -- it is not protected by the attorney-client 

2 privilege. It is an exception to the attorney-client 

3 privilege. And that's -- Commissioner Bulla and I --

4 that's our -- how we apply it in pretty much, in fact, they 

5 just left, Mr. Solomon we -- this was hotly litigated. 

6 This is the first time she and I looked at this four years 

7 ago when I took over and this is what we came up with. 

8 And this is -- it's pretty well laid out in this 

9 case out of -- where's this from? Is it from Rhode Island? 

10 Where is it from? Oh, Washington D.C., Cobell, C-0-B-E-L-

11 L, versus Norton, 212 FRD 24. It's a 2012 case. I mean, 

12 it's pretty well established. I mean, granted it's in the 

13 context of URESA and they talk about the fiduciary is the 

14 person who is the URESA trustee, but it's the rule that 

15 applies to trustees. 

16 And that's -- I mean -- we have followed this rule 

17 ever since we took over, so this is entirely consistent 

18 with how the Commissioner and I have interpreted the 

19 fiduciary exception to the attorney-client privilege. It 

20 was first recognized in this country by Delaware, Court of 

21 Chancery, in a seminal 1976 opinion, holding that: 

22 Trust beneficiaries are entitled to inspect 

23 opinions of counsel procured by the trustee to guide 

24 him/her in administration of the trust. 

25 That's pretty clearly stated. It's been the rule, 
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1 as far as I know, governing fiduciary law ever since, and 

2 this is what Commissioner Bulla and I have -- once we came 

3 to this conclusion, this is how we've applied it ever since 

4 we took over four years ago. So that's -- that is my view 

5 of the fiduciary exception. 

6 However, I have a little concern about the 

7 document the way you drafted it, with all due respect, no 

8 offense Mr. Moody. I thought it was overbroad. The 

9 Exhibit 18, I think it may be go beyond the scope of that 

10 exception, with all due respect. 

11 MR. MOODY: How would Your Honor have us limit 

12 that? 

13 THE COURT: It seems to me that this appears to be 

14 both individually, or as trustee, and I, you know, I think 

15 that exceeds the scope of the exception because if she had 

16 the attorney-client relationship with them, individually, 

17 that was her attorney-client relationship about advising, I 

18 don't know, advising her about her own investments, say, 

19 for example or something, then you're not entitled to that, 

20 I don't think. 

21 MR. MOODY: Well --

22 THE COURT: So that's my concern about it. I just 

23 thought this document, where it specifically said, 

24 individually and as trustees, I have a -- I'm concerned 

25 about that. I understand the problem that you have here, 
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1 where somebody might claim that something was individual 

2 but it was -- if it was paid for by the trust, that's a 

3 different issue to be litigated at a different day. 

4 MR. MOODY: So I think I can give Your Honor a 

5 little background and maybe explain why this --

6 THE COURT: Right. 

7 

8 

9 

MR. MOODY: -- was as broad as it was. 

THE COURT: Yeah. 

MR. MOODY: Number one, and I think I laid this 

10 out in the case law, the burden, really, is on Ms. Ahern to 

11 distinguish which -- what representation was for her, 

12 individually, versus what was for the trust. And if she 

13 doesn't designate that and say what it was, then we really 

14 don't know. 

15 trust. 

There's an assumption that it was all for the 

16 The other reason I did it this way is because in Texas 

17 they do not recognize the fiduciary exception to the 

18 attorney-client privilege. We want Texas to apply Nevada 

19 law and with this Court's findings, then it's going to help 

20 us go to Texas and say we understand what your law is, but 

21 we're not dealing with Texas law. This is a Court Order 

22 that deals with Nevada law on the fiduciary exception and, 

23 therefore, give us what you got. 

24 THE COURT: Right. Okay. I understand, but I 

25 still have a problem with it. 
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1 MS. PETERSON: Yes, Your honor. We'd like to just 

2 echo that the problem with this authorization is that 

3 they're essentially asking the Court to order our client to 

4 waive her individual attorney-client or accountant-client 

5 privilege 

6 THE COURT: Yeah. 

7 MS. PETERSON: And this Court can't do that. 

8 THE COURT: Right. 

9 MS. PETERSON: Ms. Ahern has signed authorizations 

10 in her capacity as the former trustee, made it clear when 

11 we've been asked by the current trustee, made it clear that 

12 she is not asserting any sort of privilege on behalf of the 

13 trust. She's the former trustee. She is complying with 

14 the Court's prior orders to provide information, but she is 

15 not waiving her individual privilege in this authorization. 

16 THE COURT: So, Mr. Moody, I'm not sure if I've 

17 seen the one she signed. I thought that the last time we 

18 talked that the problem is that the version that was signed 

19 saying -- just waiving it as the trustee wasn't -- there 

20 was something about it that wasn't acceptable in Texas, and 

21 so you needed -- we needed one that would somehow satisfy 

22 Texas. And I think there's probably a way to draft one 

23 that would satisfy Texas, but that's my concern is, I 

24 you know, until we I know it's a hassle, but until we 

25 have a finding saying -- or somebody there asserts a 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

privilege to -- saying to Nevada, you don't get it because 

it's in her individual capacity, I can't I need a 

finding saying she was using trust funds improperly to get 

this advice for herself, and paying with trust funds, and 

it wasn't really advice for the trust, it was advice 

against the trust, or at the interest of the other 

beneficiaries. I understand that's where we're headed, but 

don't we have to have that finding before it can go there? 

MR. MOODY: Well --

THE COURT: Because I think right now I'm just --

11 I think right now I -- that's the prerequisite to say in 

12 her individual capacity. 

13 MR. MOODY: So here's where we started, Your 

14 Honor. Obviously, you know, after Mr. Waid was appointed, 

15 we came in here, we obtained an order for Ms. Ahern to 

16 cooperate with the trust in obtaining the trust records. 

17 We have an accounting that was filed by her that is 

18 inaccurate, and may be fraudulent, with misrepresentations 

19 about what monies are where, and what they were used for. 

20 So, Mr. Waid is trying to go to the sources, to those 

21 individuals that provide professional services to her. 

22 Obviously there's an overlap, you know. 

23 It -- first, they get paid with trust funds and 

24 they're doing some trust work and I -- granted, you know, 

25 they may be doing some work for her, individually, trying 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

to challenge the very thing that we're arguing about, and 

so it sounds like the burden is now on us to distinguish 

what is trust related and what's not, and I don't think 

that's where the case law that --

THE COURT: I'm not sure it's on us. I think the 

burden is on the party producing it to seek protection. 

MR. MOODY: Well, and they're doing that and 

8 they're gaining protection because Ms. Ahern will not 

9 authorize the production of those records. 

10 THE COURT: But will she not authorize them in any 

11 capacity because you weren't -- whatever -- I just -- I 

12 can't remember -- and that's what I said, I can't pull up 

13 any documents right now. My computer is dead, so I only 

14 have what I have in front of me right now. I seem to 

15 recall, I think I might have been provided with the version 

16 that she had provided you, and I can't remember, there was 

17 something about it now. That version of a release was 

18 could not be used in Texas to obtain what you needed to 

19 obtain. There was something about her language, because 

20 looking at the original authorization you provided in 

21 Exhibit 2, and then the new version that is Exhibit 19. 

22 I, you know, I kind of -- I see the distinction 

23 here, and I -- so I guess the things is, my problem is, I 

24 understand what you're saying, that if the providers in 

25 Texas are using -- hiding behind the attorney-client 
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1 privilege, which, in -- which does not recognize the 

2 fiduciary exception in Texas. She's a Nevada trustee, a 

3 Nevada trust, so Nevada law would apply. Too bad, sorry 

4 about that, no fiduciary exceptions is my position. But 

5 here's my problem. Maybe it's a problem with the Texas 

6 judges are not applying because they're not used to the 

7 fiduciary exception. 

8 automatically no. 

They're saying okay, well 

9 MR. MOODY: Yeah, so I think I have it right in 

10 front of me, Your Honor. She says you can provide 

11 everything that's related to the trust, subject to the 

12 following exclusions: The authorization --

13 THE COURT: Mr. Lee, do you want to get a copy of 

14 't? i . Mr. Lee, could you get -- he's got a copy for me and 

15 I'll read along. Thank you. Thanks. Are you going to 

16 copy it for me? Thank you. He'll copy it and bring you 

17 back your original. Thank you. 

18 MR. MOODY: Okay. So in -- oh, you don't have 't? i . 

19 THE COURT: I -- is it one of your Exhibits? 

20 MR. MOODY: I'm sorry? 

21 THE COURT: Is it in one of -- is it one of your 

22 exhibits to this pleading? Because I --

23 

24 

MR. MOODY: Yes. It is Exhibit 3 to this Motion. 

THE COURT: Okay. Maybe it is here. Okay. Here 

25 it is. Okay, got it. Sorry. 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

MR. MOODY: Okay. So you'll see in Paragraph 1: 

Authorization, under signed hereby request and 

authorizes the release of information subject to the 

exclusions identified in Section 2 below. 

THE COURT: Okay. 

MR. MOODY: So these exclusions. This 

7 authorization shall not apply to the following information: 

8 Any and all privileged information. 

9 So this immediately raises a problem in Texas --

THE COURT: Right. 10 

11 MR. MOODY: -- because they say, we don't care who 

12 it was for, whether it was the trust, or Ms. Ahern. We 

13 don't recognize the fiduciary exception here and, 

14 therefore, whether it was related to either, you don't get 

15 it. 

THE COURT: Okay. 16 

17 

18 

19 

MR. MOODY: And so the courts are backing them up 

20 so much. 

21 

THE COURT: Okay. Thanks. Thanks a lot. 

MR. MOODY: -- with regard to this. 

Thanks 

22 THE COURT: Okay. You're -- yeah. I see. Okay, 

23 you're right. Yeah I do have it. 

24 MR. MOODY: So that's why we're looking for 

25 something broader. 

Page 11 

AA1124



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

THE COURT: Okay. I agree. And she is not 

entitled to protect privileged information in her capacity 

as a trustee. She's not. I mean that's Nevada law. I 

think -- we apply the fiduciary exception, so I understand 

that. But, so I thought that the original version was fine 

and it makes perfectly clear that concerning Eleanor 

7 Connell Hartman, trustee, dated such and such a date, or 

8 the trust itself without reference to its trustee, 

9 including any and all insurance, etcetera. 

10 Yeah, I mean it makes perfect sense to me. 

11 Eleanor Ahern -- Connell Hartman Ahern and her trustee 

12 in her capacity as trustee of the trust to the following 

13 successor trustee. I mean, I -- that's, to me, --

14 

15 

16 

17 

MR. MOODY: So the original, you're okay with? 

THE COURT: Yeah. Oh Absolutely. 

MR. MOODY: Okay. 

THE COURT: Yeah. 

18 MS. PETERSON: Would Your Honor consider, because 

19 I think this needs to be clear, saying that any sort of 

20 authorization, she's not authorizing the release of 

21 information related to her individually. And that is her 

22 privilege that she still has, regardless. And this 

23 there is no exclusion in that first offered exhibit and 

24 that's why that one is too broad. 

25 THE COURT: Okay. So in her capacity as trustee 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

of the trust only? 

MS. PETERSON: As -- that'd be correct, Your 

Honor, as the former trustee of the trust, she's 

authorizing that. 

THE COURT: Right. So as long as it's clear that 

it's in her capacity -- that they're looking for 

information in her capacity as trustee of the trust only, 

then that's fine. Because you don't give them an automatic 

something to hide. I mean, I see why now that I see it 

front of me, I don't -- I just missed this the first time I 

read this thing, about -- I couldn't figure out which was -

- which trust was -- which release was being sent. 

So I can see why the exclusions are a problem 

because you immediately take away privileged information 

and raise the question in Texas, well what's privilege? 

16 And under their view, everything's privileged. It's not 

17 under ours, so that's my problem with it, is -- I -- while 

18 I didn't appreciate that -- I understand that, ultimately, 

19 the issue that's addressed in this revised number 19, 

20 ultimately this is going to be the issue which is: Did 

21 Mrs. Ahern obtain legal or accounting advice paid for by 

22 trust funds, which was adverse to the trust or it's 

23 beneficiaries? That's going to be a problem, but we have 

24 to make that finding before I think we can compel her to go 

25 beyond that and say we want your individual -- we want to 
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1 release all individual privileged documents as well because 

2 I understand where it's going, but I think she's entitled 

3 to have that finding made before she's compelled to give up 

4 her privilege. Mr. Waid. 

5 

6 

MR. WAID: Your Honor, if I can just maybe add a 

little context to the circumstance of which I've sought 

7 these records. After I was appointed, I reviewed the 

8 pleadings on file, Ms. Ahern's accounting that she had 

9 filed though Marquis and Aurbach, and I contacted the law 

10 firms, accounting firms, and others who were paid with 

11 trust funds, and I simply said I'd like to see what work 

12 you did, if it benefitted the trust, if you rendered 

13 opinions as to the tax issues relating to the trust and 

14 it's future, and etcetera, etcetera, [indiscernible] on gas 

15 leases and the rest. 

16 Initially they said: Fine, we'll cooperate. 

17 We'll send you everything you want because you were -- it 

18 was obvious you were paid you paid the trust paid 

19 with trust funds. Period of silence. I have to go back. 

20 Now we're having to engage counsel. Again, a somewhat 

21 agreement to cooperate. 

22 It's only been in the recent past few weeks that 

23 all of a sudden everyone is going for protective orders. 

24 Initial cooperation with me. Initial cooperation with 

25 Texas counsel, because of the time delay, and now Motions 
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1 for Protective Orders, with the caveat we're not doing 

2 anything until we're ordered to do something. 

3 THE COURT: Okay. 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

MR. WAID: And therein lies my dilemma. 

THE COURT: And it's like --

MR. WAID: -- regardless of what we produce here -

THE COURT: I guess my question is what do you 

9 need from this Court in order to get that? Do you need 

10 something saying I am ordering Mrs. Ahern to make available 

11 through whatever parties hold information obtained or 

12 provided to her in her capacity as trustee to consent to 

13 that production? Because I can't compel somebody in Texas. 

14 I can compel the local law firm. I have got -- we got -- I 

15 have no 

16 

17 

18 comply. 

19 

MR. WAID: Correct. 

THE COURT: I'm sure that the local law firms will 

MR. WAID: Your Honor, with all due respect to the 

20 whole legal process and this is a Court of equity in 

21 addition to being a Court of law, my challenge is I really 

22 don't want to spend more time, effort, and money pursuing 

23 these. I would appreciate the Court on its own motion 

24 saying: I've already ordered Ms. Ahern's, a former 

25 trustee, to cooperate. Cooperate. Give them the releases. 
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1 Get me the information. I'm not going to disseminate it. 

2 I will agree not to put it in my final report, but I'm 

3 entitled to see, here are trust dollars, where they went, 

4 and how they were allocated. Produce a privilege log. But 

5 that really doesn't solve my challenge. 

6 THE COURT: So then, you need a release that would 

7 compel production of any and all information that was 

8 either obtained through payment from trust funds? 

9 MR. WAID: Right. 

10 THE COURT: Or was otherwise in her capacity --

11 MR. WAID: Right. 

12 THE COURT: -- as trustee. 

13 MR. WAID: Because the challenge is in Ms. Ahern's 

14 accounting, it was declared under penalty of perJury: I 

15 used these funds -- trust funds. 

16 behalf of the trust. 

I paid these firms on 

17 THE COURT: All right. Okay. So, but to the 

18 extent if they were providing her any information, any 

19 advice, any accounting, legal, whatever advice, 

20 individually, then we're all understanding that unless and 

21 until we can get over that next hump and say we're entitled 

22 to know what you're individual privilege is, yeah, we're 

23 entitled to have -- to compel you to give up your 

24 individual privilege because that was -- there was some 

25 finding that that was wrongful. 
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1 I mean, I understand the concept that it was paid 

2 for by -- with trust funds, then whether she -- whether 

3 that was in her capacity, individually, or in her capacity 

4 as trustee, if it's paid for by the trust funds, that you 

5 want it. But then she still might have received advice 

6 that it hers, individually, that I don't know that we're 

7 entitled to yet unless and until we have that finding that 

8 you're -- that there is this -- well, what you're 

9 ultimately looking for. This whole claw back and 

10 everything. Mr. -- I think that's really what Mr. Powell's 

11 clients are looking for. 

12 MR. WAID: Right. But perhaps the Court can 

13 advise us whether this Court will adopt or examine in 

14 entering a finding of that, that the Court will adopt their 

15 crime fraud exception. 

THE COURT: Okay. 16 

17 MR. WAID: They've already -- her counsel's 

18 already raised criminal elements -- potential criminal 

19 elements in this case. I've clearly reviewed financial 

20 records and seen what was presented under oath, under 

21 penalty perJury, was not true and not accurate. So we have 

22 both crime and we have fraud. Texas has some recognition 

23 of the crime fraud exception under the privilege. 

24 So, perhaps give me a little guidance because I 

25 don't want to continue spending money just trying to get 
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1 records. 

2 THE COURT: Okay. 

3 MR. WAID: That's my challenge. This is becoming 

4 expensive. 

5 THE COURT: Right. 

6 MR. WAID: And that's not what I was appointed to 

7 do. 

8 THE COURT: Correct. 

9 MR. WAID: We gather the information and --

10 THE COURT: I appreciate your intention to do this 

11 in a way that is most cost effective. 

12 So, I'm just trying to figure out what we -- what 

13 you need in either in an order and that Ms. Ahern be 

14 compelled to sign, because at this point I just -- I 

15 understand the ultimate issue is this: Was there a crime 

16 committed? But we already tried to go down that road once 

17 and we don't have that finding of perjury. Somebody else 

18 heard it, so I don't have that finding that I can rely on. 

19 So what would I base saying that I'm compelling 

20 Mrs. Ahern to sign this and what would you be looking for 

21 with that? Are you looking for -- because I still think 

22 she's entitled to her attorney-client privilege, which I 

23 don't think that at any point I could ever compel her to 

24 give up, unless we can show that whatever individual advice 

25 she received, not advice she received for the trust and 
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1 paid for with trust funds, but any individual advice she 

2 received paid for with trust funds, that I can invade that 

3 privilege. 

4 Don't I need to -- some sort of a finding that 

5 there was, in fact, and isn't that what we're ultimately 

6 trying to get to in having our evidentiary hearing? 

7 MR. MOODY: So it sounds like we're somewhere 

8 between the original authorization that we provided --

THE COURT: Right. 9 

10 MR. MOODY: -- and the new one that we've asked 

11 for. 

12 THE COURT: Right. Because I still have a problem 

13 with individual. I 

14 MR. MOODY: Okay. 

15 THE COURT: I still have a problem with that. 

16 MR. MOODY: So I --

17 THE COURT: I understand the concept, it's advice 

18 paid for with trust funds or specifically for the trust in 

19 her capacity, because I just -- anything that's individual 

20 to her, I just have this -- I just 

21 

22 

MR. MOODY: So I just --

THE COURT: When can I ever invade the attorney-

23 client privilege? 

24 MR. MOODY: I want to make sure I understand, Your 

25 Honor. If it was paid for by trust funds, is Your honor 
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1 saying even though it benefitted her individually, it is 

2 still protected by attorney-client privilege? 

3 THE COURT: Well, here's my concern about that. 

4 think you're entitled to know if something was paid for 

5 with trust funds. 

6 

7 

MR. MOODY: Okay. 

THE COURT: I'm not sure you're entitled to know 

8 what it was. Do you see the distinction? 

9 

10 

MR. MOODY: Okay. 

THE COURT: Maybe I wouldn't -- maybe didn't make 

I 

11 that very clear. You're entitled to know if she was paying 

12 an attorney with trust funds. You're entitled to know 

13 that. 

14 MR. MOODY: Okay. 

15 THE COURT: I'm not sure you're entitled to 

16 actually get, like, every letter that went. If it was in 

17 her -- if it was to her, individually. 

MR. MOODY: Okay. So it sounds like 18 

19 THE COURT: Am I parsing this too -- and I think 

20 that this is ultimately what Mr. Waid wants. He may 

21 ultimately be entitled to it, but I just think that until 

22 we can say we are invading the attorney -- individual 

23 attorney-client privilege, we have to first have made some 

24 finding saying that you're entitled to this because this 

25 was a fraud, and we still -- and that's what we're going to 
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1 get to next, is how are we ever going to get to that 

2 hearing if we don't have legal counsel for us? See what 

3 I'm saying? 

4 So I -- is there a way -- I don't know if that's 

5 sufficient for Mr. Waid, but that's -- he's tracing funds. 

6 He's tracing funds. So, we're looking for payments made 

7 from trust funds. You're entitled to know if payments were 

8 made from trust funds. 

9 

10 

MR. MOODY: Okay. 

THE COURT: That's category one. And/or anything 

11 having to do with her in her capacity as trustee. 

12 MR. MOODY: All right. So we already know that 

13 they were paid with trust finds. 

14 

15 

THE COURT: Correct. 

MR. MOODY: These three professionals that we're 

16 looking at. 

17 THE COURT: Any billing records, anything having 

18 to do with payment from trust funds. 

19 MR. MOODY: Okay. So we can ask for that. 

20 THE COURT: Right. 

21 MR. MOODY: And then anything trust related. 

22 THE COURT: Correct. 

23 MR. MOODY: Opinions. 

24 THE COURT: Right. 

25 MR. MOODY: Work. 

Page 21 

AA1134



1 THE COURT: I think that's well -- as we have 

2 interpreted it here and, as far as I know, we haven't been 

3 appealed on it yet. There's no caseloads come down. I 

4 think this is just me and the Commissioner. Well, actually 

5 

6 

7 

Commissioner Yamashita and Commissioner Bulla. This is 

kind of like our -- we're all trying to be consistent on 

how we apply this fiduciary exception. And so that's our 

8 view. Any trust beneficiaries are entitled to inspect 

9 opinions of counsel procured by the trustee to guide him in 

10 administration of the trust, and it goes on, and on, and 

11 on. 

12 As far as, you know, other kinds of advice and all 

13 those correspondence, any of those kinds of things. The 

14 trustee seeking to foreclose the beneficiaries' inquiry 

15 into the trust administration must bear the burden of 

16 showing that he or she acted in the capacity that rendered 

17 the privilege applicable. That's her burden of proof. So 

18 it's her burden of proof. 

19 So at this point in time, I don't have anything 

20 that tells me otherwise, but if there's something that is 

21 individual to her, then I still think that before I can say 

22 I'm invading that -- the -- does the privilege exist for 

23 communication does not exclusively concern administration 

24 of the trust. And it doesn't. I mean, it's broader than 

25 that. I mean, if you're using trust funds, I think that's 
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1 what this opinion talks about, that you -- the trustees 

2 can't claim their communications are related to a 

3 litigation. That doesn't protect you. Just saying that 

4 this is in anticipation of litigation doesn't protect you. 

5 It still -- if it's for the trust, they still have to 

6 produce it. They can't hide behind work product. They 

7 can't hide behind any of those things at this point in 

8 time. 

9 

They just -- you just can't. 

So, do you want to try drafting another version 

10 that sort of incorporates this language and says that here 

11 in Nevada we recognize the fiduciary exception? This 

12 applies to communications about the trust. This applies to 

13 opinions about the trust. This applies to work product 

14 about the trust. It applies to everything -- well, the 

15 product is the attorneys. It applies to everything that's 

16 paid for by the trust, and it's something -- and unless --

17 the only exception being if it is -- if the work product is 

18 to her, individually, then I think that's still protected 

19 because that's her attorney-client privilege, individually. 

20 But you're entitled to know if it's paid -- how it was paid 

21 for. 

22 MR. MOODY: All right. 

23 THE COURT: So we can rewrite 

24 MR. MOODY: I think, then, with that direction, 

25 I'll go back and work on that authorization. 
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1 THE COURT: I understand that it may not be 

2 enough, that ultimately what Mr. Waid may need -- he may 

3 need more, but I think we then have to -- before I'm 

4 willing to go on this crime fraud thing, I think we have to 

5 make that finding separately. And I don't think it's fair 

6 to do that today when it's not been briefed and we haven't 

7 actually had that hearing, because that's kind of our 

8 ultimate issue here. 

9 

10 

11 

MR. MOODY: All right. So our Motion is granted. 

THE COURT: It's granted. 

MR. MOODY: We'll go back, draft an authorization, 

12 and provide it to counsel for Ms. Ahern. 

13 MS. PETERSON: Well, let's be clear. The Motion 

14 is granted in part and denied in part, because their Motion 

15 was to compel my client to waive her individual attorney-

16 client privilege. And I want to be clear, --

17 THE COURT: Right. And 

18 MS. PETERSON: -- the Court's not ordering her to 

19 do that today. 

20 THE COURT: I -- that it is without prejudice to 

21 seek that. I don't think we have that finding necessary to 

22 compel that at this point. I understand where you're 

23 going. I understand it may ultimately be -- we may have no 

24 choice, but at this point I don't think we're there yet. 

25 So, at this point, I'm willing to go no further than 
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1 opinions of counsel, correspondence, anything related to 

2 the trust. All communications related to the trust in her 

3 capacity as trust that all -- they're entitled to that. 

4 And beyond that, they're entitled to know if any advice was 

5 paid for by the trust. 

6 The only thing that's protected at this point in 

7 time is if it was individual advice to her in her 

8 individual capacity. It's protected without prejudice at 

9 this point in time, Mr. Moody. I want to be clear, because 

10 Ms. Peterson's correct. I'm not, yet, invading the 

11 individual attorney-client privilege, but this is without 

12 prejudice because that's where we're headed. 

13 

14 

15 

16 

MR. MOODY: Got it. 

THE COURT: Okay. 

MR. MOODY: Okay. 

Loud and clear. 

THE COURT: All right. Which gets us to the real 

17 point, which is the distribution of income. Ms. Peterson? 

18 MR. LENHARD: No, you get stuck with me. 

19 THE COURT: Okay. Okay. 

20 MR. LENHARD: And I'm going to use the podium, if 

21 that's all right. 

22 THE COURT: Certainly. 

23 MR. LENHARD: Judge, a couple of minutes ago, 

24 actually 

25 THE COURT: Is the -- Kerry, is the recording on? 
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1 Is the little red light on your mic 

2 THE COURT RECORDER: Yes. It's on. 

3 MR. LENHARD: Yeah. 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

THE COURT: Okay great. Just wanted to make sure 

if you were standing at the podium it was going to record 

you. Okay good. 

MR. LENHARD: All right. Thank you. A couple of 

minutes ago you asked what we were still doing here. 

THE COURT: Yeah. 

MR. LENHARD: Because we had petitioned the Court 

a little while ago to withdraw. I'm going to tell you that 

I was troubled by the fact that my firm was making me 

withdraw from this case because, you know, I've practiced 

law now for 40 years, and I was concerned about the fact 

that I have a client who, allegedly, has engaged in a 

16 number of serious misdeeds in this Court. And I'm not 

17 justifying those misdeeds, if they're proven to be 

18 accurate, and, of course, Mr. Waid says there's a 

19 confession and we'll deal with all that at the appropriate 

20 time. 

21 But what I was more worried about was the fact 

22 that I was abandoning somebody to be bullied and pushed 

23 around in a courtroom, only protected by a judge who's 

24 supposed to be the individual mediator or the individual 

25 arbitrator of these disputes. I didn't want to leave Ms. 
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1 Ahern to the mercy of Mr. Waid, Mr. Moody, or counsel for 

2 the two daughters. I didn't think that was appropriate so, 

3 despite the angst, let's say, of my managing partner, I'm 

4 here today. 

5 I haven't received an accounting for a significant 

6 period of time in this case, as far as what income has been 

7 received by the trust. I believe the 35 percent that first 

8 went to the Summary Judgement Order is still my client's 

9 interest in the trust. And I say still, because that's to 

10 be decided at a later date. I believe that amount is 

11 probably north of $400,000. Yet, I have a client today who 

12 is going to the food bank in Mesquite, going to the 

13 Salvation Army in Mesquite, and the Seventh Day Adventist 

14 Church for food. I have a client who cannot pay for legal 

15 representation for a trial coming up in February where she 

16 may lose all interest in the trust. You know, Mr. Powell 

17 has an argument and he wants to make it, and he's entitled 

18 to make that, of course he is. And we're going to have a 

19 full blown trial sometime in February. My client, at age 

20 79, she can't even hear for heaven's sake, is she going to 

21 represent herself in these proceedings? 

22 So I was bothered about the concept of leaving and 

23 I decided despite the fact it would create a lot of flack, 

24 a lot of objections, I would file for her living expenses 

25 and we've done like a divorce proceeding. We've provided a 
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1 summary of why these expenses are necessary. I think it's 

2 10 to $11,000 a month. And I've also put in for fees. An 

3 interim fee of $30,000, and $10,000 a month up until the 

4 date of the trial. 

5 I will tell you that that is a significant loss to 

6 my law firm and that if Ms. Ahern prevails and retains her 

7 interest in the trust, I will then settle that at that 

8 point in time. I will tell you that my law firm is not the 

9 least bit pleased about the fact I'm here doing this today, 

10 but I feel an obligation, despite the allegations and the 

11 misdeeds and so forth that she's purportedly committed. 

12 Whether she's a bad person or not, she is entitled 

13 to her day in court and she is entitled to effective 

14 representation. If, in fact, there is $400,000 on her 

15 account, or more, being held by Mr. Waid, she should have 

16 access to a small sum to live on and to represent herself 

17 going into February. I don't think that is too much to 

18 ask. Then, at that point in time, if Ms. Ahern prevails at 

19 the trial, you can tax her interest in the trust and 

20 arrange a repayment plan. 

21 Judge, I'm also asking that we get a decision on 

22 this promptly, and there is a reason, I want to be candid 

23 with this Court. We intend on going to the Supreme Court 

24 and asking them to review these proceedings. If, in fact, 

25 she's denied access to fees, and access to her own expenses 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 expenses. 

THE COURT: Was there already an appeal filed? 

MR. LENHARD: This would be a writ. 

THE COURT: Okay. 

MR. LENHARD: An emergency writ --

THE COURT: Is there --

MR. LENHARD: -- because she's going to trial on 

THE COURT: Okay 

MR. LENHARD: if we're not granted fees --

THE COURT: Okay. 

MR. LENHARD: -- and if she's not granted living 

We want the Court to look at that. 

14 THE COURT: Okay. So I guess -- I just -- I'm 

15 trying to figure out, are we -- do we currently have any 

16 issues on appeal? 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

MR. MOODY: Yes. 

MS. PETERSON: Yes. 

MR. LENHARD: Yes, you do. 

THE COURT: Okay. Are we -- is part of this -­

MR. LENHARD: That doesn't prevent us from filing 

22 a writ of mandate --

23 

24 

THE COURT: Okay. 

MR. LENHARD: -- or a writ of prohibition. I'm 

25 not sure which one it would be. 
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1 THE COURT:: But I'm just trying to figure out for 

2 when we talk about the attorneys' fees, Mr. Lenhard, is 

3 that just -- are we talking about preparing for the trial? 

4 Or is that also the appeal? 

5 MR. LENHARD: Oh no. We are also -- we also have 

6 to do the appeal. 

7 THE COURT: Okay. 

8 MR. LENHARD: We are losing on this. But that's 

9 enough to keep me alive. 

10 THE COURT: I just wanted to make clear what --

11 I'm just trying to figure out what the attorneys' fees --

12 MR. LENHARD: Right. 

13 

14 

15 

THE COURT: -- are for. 

MR. LENHARD: But also, I said, I --

THE COURT: Because I think that was one question 

16 they raised is: Why did you need this cut of money? I had 

17 forgotten about we did have an issue already on appeal. 

18 MR. LENHARD: We'll be able to stall it but we 

19 have to file a brief next month. 

20 

21 

THE COURT: Yeah. Okay. 

MR. LENHARD: But I wanted to get in the clear 

22 with the Court. You're certainly entitled to that. We're 

23 asking you to rule today, and if you deny us, fine. Deny 

24 us so we can go up and have the Court review --

25 THE COURT: Right. 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

MR. LENHARD: -- this whole thing. 

THE COURT: Okay. 

MR. LENHARD: Thank you. 

THE COURT: Okay. I -- one issue that was raised 

5 by, I don't know if it was Mr. Powell or Mr. Moody, there 

6 are properties. Are they income producing properties, 

7 there's -- because there's a rental home. She's living in, 

8 currently in a rental property, but she owns some 

9 properties, so are -- is there any way to turn those into 

10 income producing properties? 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

lost. 

to me. 

MR. LENHARD: They're all under water. 

THE COURT: Okay. 

MR. LENHARD: They're all on the verge of being 

THE COURT: Okay. All right. 

MR. LENHARD: And that's what's been represented 

Let me put it that way, so we're clear. Okay. And 

THE COURT: I just want to make sure. I mean, if 

20 there was anything we could do to generate income. 

21 

22 

MR. LENHARD: If there's an issue on --

MS. PETERSON: We did provide the information on 

23 the properties to Mr. Waid. 

24 

25 

MR. LENHARD: Thank you. 

MS. PETERSON: It appears that one of those three 
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1 properties was sold back in June. The other two are not 

2 held in the name of Ms. Ahern, are held in other business 

3 trust names. As my understanding, that she controls those 

4 business trusts, but both of those have mortgages and have 

5 renters or income that is not sufficient. 

6 THE COURT: Okay. 

7 MS. PETERSON: It's -- they are under water as I 

8 understand it. 

9 

10 

11 

12 Mr. Waid. 

13 

14 that. 

15 

16 

17 

THE COURT: The income to --

MR. LENHARD: Yeah. It doesn't 

MS. PETERSON: And we provided that information to 

THE COURT: Got it. Okay. Thank you, appreciate 

MR. LENHARD: Thank you. 

MR. MOODY: I'm just going to stay here. 

THE COURT: Sure. Fine. 

18 MR. MOODY: Judge, as you know, we are not taking 

19 a position one way or the other. We filed a response. 

20 

21 

22 

23 

THE COURT: Right. 

MR. MOODY: Very delicately titled it that way. 

THE COURT: Correct. 

MR. MOODY: I will say this. The last thing we 

24 want to do is delay things anymore, but if this is going up 

25 to the Supreme Court on a writ, I do want to point this 
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1 out. The original Motion asks for a distribution of net 

2 income, that 35 percent. In Ms. Ahern's Reply, the request 

3 is made to invade trust principal. 

4 

5 

6 

7 

THE COURT: Right. 

MR. MOODY: Which is a very different request -­

THE COURT: Very different. 

MR. MOODY: -- than we started out with. Not that 

8 we're going to take an adversarial position, but at least I 

9 think we have a right and responsibility as trustee to 

10 point out to the Court what our position is, even if it's 

11 complete deference to Your Honor about what to do with that 

12 request regarding the invasion of trust principal. So 

13 THE COURT: Yeah. Can we talk about that? 

14 Because I thought we -- this was the is there anything 

15 in this trust other than oil and gas revenue? Because I 

16 just didn't know what you could possibly invade? I mean, 

17 it's not like you can sell, like, a share of an oil field. 

18 MR. LENHARD: Well, so we're clear too, and if it 

19 because we're in a rush. 

20 THE COURT: Right. 

21 MR. LENHARD: What we're seeking only to go 

22 against is the 35 percent of hers. 

23 

24 

25 record. 

THE COURT: Okay. 

MR. LENHARD: So let's make that clear on the 
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THE COURT: Okay 

MR. LENHARD: No dispute. 

1 

2 

3 

4 

THE COURT: Okay. I just wanted to make sure. 

MR. WAID: The trust corpus is undividable. I 

5 mean, it's an undivided interest in real property --

6 THE COURT: Yeah. 

7 MR. WAID: -- and oil and gas revenues on that 

8 property, and other properties. 

9 THE COURT: Yeah, that's what I thought. I just 

10 didn't 

11 

12 

MR. WAID: I can't invade and divide. 

THE COURT: understand how we could possibly 

13 invade it. From what I understood, it's just exactly that. 

14 It was an interest that generates oil and gas revenue. And 

15 so it's mineral rights. And I --

16 MR. LENHARD: Well, 

17 THE COURT: -- just don't know if there's any way 

18 to -- they're not holding stocks and bonds. 

19 MR. LENHARD: No, no, no, no. But they're holding 

20 cash. 

21 THE COURT: Well, okay. I just want to make that 

22 clear that --

MR. LENHARD: Yeah. 23 

24 THE COURT: -- there's not something that they 

25 could go and sell. 
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1 MR. LENHARD: No, no, no. We're not suggesting 

2 that. 

3 THE COURT: Okay. Got that. Okay. Understood. 

4 MR. LENHARD: They get oil and gas revenue every 

5 month. 

6 THE COURT: Okay. 

7 MR. LENHARD: And we haven't seen an accounting 

8 for quite a while, but we believe the 35 percent of the oil 

9 and gas revenue that's being held by the trust is about 

10 $400,000. 

11 THE COURT: okay. Now this is another issue, I 

12 think, because it's a term of art and I know that Mr. Waid 

13 is not -- has been really careful to not provide, like, a 

14 final -- because he does not want to commit himself that, 

15 as I understand this, that he knows, he can account for the 

16 trust. And he's being very careful in not doing that right 

17 now, because that's a term of art, and if he says here's my 

18 accounting, he's telling us he can't find anything else and 

19 this is what there is and I don't think he wants to go 

20 there at this point. 

21 

22 

MR. WAID: I'm not prepared to. 

THE COURT: If there's a statement or some sort of 

23 an income -- I mean, because I we do not want him, at 

24 this point in time, to prepare a formal accounting because 

25 that then places us in a position where this is the record 
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1 and none of us feels confident that we know where the money 

2 went and we don't want an accounting. But there may be 

3 some other way to I don't know if there's some interim 

4 term, or some, like, less official term that is a statement 

5 of income or something that might be possible. But I just 

6 want to make it really clear, I don't -- I would not 

7 expect, at this point, Mr. Waid to provide a formal 

8 accounting. I don't think it's in anybody's interest that 

9 we ask him to do so because none of us has given up hope 

10 that he will be successful in his efforts to find what 

11 happened to the money. And until that time, we don't want 

12 him to file what would be termed an official accounting. 

13 We don't want that at this point, but there might be some 

14 interim kind of report that we can get. 

15 MR. WAID: Your Honor, I'm willing to provide an 

16 accounting from the date of my appointment --

17 THE COURT: Right. 

18 MR. WAID: -- until today. 

19 THE COURT: It's like the interim accounting. 

20 MR. WAID: An interim accounting of just the 

21 revenue that's been received, 

THE COURT: Right. 22 

23 MR. WAID: -- checks that have been deposited into 

24 the bank, --

25 THE COURT: Okay. 
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1 MR. WAID: -- cash that I have on hand now. 

2 THE COURT: Great. I -- because we do not want a 

3 formal accounting. 

MR. WAID: It's fine. 4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

THE COURT: I don't think it's anybody's -- are we 

in agreement that's not in anybody's interest? 

MR. WAID: I don't have the records yet, so 

THE COURT: And we can't ask him to do it. So 

9 yeah, we can't get a formal accounting, but we certainly 

10 can get you information, Mr. Lenhard, I think you're 

11 entitled to it. Your client's entitled to it. And so that 

12 would be part of this, is that we'll provide you with 

13 information and -- because I don't know if there's $400,000 

14 being held or not. It was my understanding that there 

15 wasn't because we were left in kind of the cash strapped 

16 situation when the funds were withdrawn before the accounts 

17 were turned over. So that's kind of part of our problem. 

18 This starts from a not great position. 

19 So but we can get information for you on an 

20 interim income and expense report kind of thing. And 

21 that's agreeable, Mr. Waid? 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. WAID: Yes. 

THE COURT: Okay. Great. 

MR. WAID: I'll be happy to do so. 

THE COURT: Okay. So as long as it's clear that 
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1 we're not asking anybody to invade the principal or provide 

2 us with a formal accounting. Are we -- do you have 

3 anything else to add, Mr. Moody? 

4 MR. MOODY: No, Your Honor. 

5 THE COURT: Okay. It's really Mr. Powell's 

6 opposition. Okay. So, Mr. Powell. 

7 MR. POWELL: Your Honor, the one thing in context 

8 that I'd like to throw out to you right now is Mr. Waid and 

9 Mr. Moody, this previous hearing that they were just at, 

10 Ms. Ahern had representation over there, in the form of Mr. 

11 Shapiro, which I have attached to my objection to you. Is 

12 Mr. Shapiro working for free? 

13 We -- what my biggest problem with the audacity to 

14 come in and ask the Court for money is that we don't have 

15 answers as to where the previous money went. We don't have 

16 answered as to what the current assets that Ms. Ahern has. 

17 As Mr. Waid and Mr. Moody have indicated to you before, 

18 that's really going to be effectively the purpose of this 

19 deposition is to get answers. We are acting in this 

20 vacuum, essentially, right now, that Ms. Ahern, who is 

21 present in this courtroom, cannot provide us with answers 

22 as to where millions of dollars went. And that's just 

23 absurd. 

24 There needs to be -- you cannot have a trustee who 

25 this court ordered hold this money in trust until 
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1 resolution of this matter who simply says, I'm not telling 

2 you. That's not the way this works. As you astutely 

3 pointed out, there's no criminal matter proceeding right 

4 now. This is a fact finding mission for Mr. Waid that he 

5 has been on since day one, effectively, when he takes over, 

6 there should be millions of dollars that you ordered Ms. 

7 Ahern to be holding for my clients and Mr. Waid, once again 

8 

9 THE COURT: Don't remind him. He's never going to 

10 forgive me for this one. 

11 MR. POWELL: What's that? 

12 THE COURT: He's never going to forgive me for 

13 this one. So please 

14 MR. POWELL: For getting -- well, the reality 

15 though is that when he takes over, he finds $10,000 in that 

16 account, roughly. So, from that point in time until now, 

17 he is trying to figure out: Where did these funds go and 

18 how do I collect these? Can I even collect these? 

19 So we're acting here as though somehow we're 

20 seeking some mystery person to tell us where the money went 

21 when such person is in this courtroom right now. And just 

22 simply saying: I'm not telling you. Well that's not 

23 acceptable, Your Honor. 

24 And what compounds the salt in this wound is the 

25 say is, I'm not telling you, and I want more money, and you 
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1 should be paying me more money. Well, no. The reality is 

2 that my clients are in the hole and it's going to take my 

3 clients years. If you do nothing else in this entire 

4 matter, just for them to get back to square and undo the 

5 damage, we're probably talking four, five, six years with 

6 Ms. Ahern not seeing a penny, just for them to get back to 

7 square one, which they should have been on the date that 

8 Mr. Waid looked in that account and there should have been 

9 those millions of dollars that you ordered her to hold and 

10 then we would not be right here right now as to this 

11 particular issue. Ms. Ahern could have appealed it. 

12 That's the other thing that troubles me about this 

13 so much as well. What right, in a Court of Equity, and, 

14 Your Honor, with all due respect, Commissioner Yamashita 

15 handles a lot of prose people making arguments on things 

16 that are just as important to them, just as valuable to 

17 them in Probate Court every Friday. So this fallacy of, 

18 well, Ms. Ahern -- there's a lot on the line for Ms. Ahern. 

19 Well, she must have representation. Well she's had 

20 representation all along the way. What we've discovered is 

21 she's also used Jacqueline and Katherine's money to pay for 

22 that representation. 

23 Which that's the other frustrating part about this 

24 is that now the attorneys are saying: Well, yeah we got 

25 paid. Mr. Waid knows -- he has access to track the Wells 
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1 Fargo payments. He has seen that the checks that have been 

2 written out for her representation. But, yet, now the 

3 attorneys are saying: Well we're not providing you with 

4 that information. Well, you got paid by trust funds, as 

5 you've astutely pointed out. Well, you have to exactly 

6 show what is exactly you did that benefitted the trust. 

7 The problem we've had here from day one with Mr. 

8 Burr's office with the representation is that if you want 

9 to think about this really astutely and ethically, how 

10 could one represent in -- under this fact pattern, also 

11 represent the trustee and represent her, individually? 

12 That's a conflict of interest. How could you do that? And 

13 I had an issue from day one with Mr. Mugen [phonetic], and 

14 I warned him, and said you better not be accepting trust 

15 funds because this is a beneficiary versus beneficiary 

16 dispute. I could care less that Ms. Ahern is claiming 

17 that, well I'm acting as trustee and I'm responding to this 

18 as trustee. This was nothing more than: I'm entitled, 

19 individually, because obviously the trustee has no 

20 beneficial interest in the trust, I'm claiming that I'm 

21 entitled to 100 percent. That's a beneficiary 

22 representation. 

23 Mr. Waid knows what he has seen, where the money 

24 has gone, but we don't have answers. He cannot fill in the 

25 gaps alone because he can't see the files because what 
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1 they're saying is: Oh, privilege, privilege. Well, we 

2 know, as you've pointed out, there is no privilege. You 

3 want to take the trust funds and claim you didn't work for 

4 the trust, you've got to share that information. 

5 And I would point out, too, is Commissioner Bulla, 

6 and I've been before here on this same issue, Your Honor, 

7 she has said in many instances, if you're not sure, submit 

8 it to me in-camera and I'll make the ultimate 

9 determination. Well, I would respectfully submit to you if 

10 any of these attorneys are conflicted about --

11 THE COURT: Well, we're not talking about them. 

12 MR. POWELL: Right. 

13 THE COURT: We're done talking about them. 

14 MR. POWELL: Okay, fine. 

15 THE COURT: We're not talking about that. This is 

16 the question of --

17 MR. POWELL: But that still goes back to the same 

18 issue, Your Honor, is that Jacqueline and Katherine's 

19 monies were used against them. Ms. Ahern used them, the 

20 monies that she was supposed to be keeping. 

21 So now we're fast forwarding to this issue of, 

22 well, she's gone through the money. Well, we that's 

23 millions of dollars that have been gone through. We just 

24 don't throw that out the window and go: Oh well, yeah, 

25 well that's I guess water under the bridge. Let's talk 
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1 about the here and now. You can't just ignore what's 

2 happened. 

3 My clients have been financially harmed by this. 

4 If we're going to talk about payment and attorneys' fees, I 

5 didn't get paid for a while in this case either because I 

6 did the right thing and said this is financially crippling 

7 you. Don't pay me right now. 

8 So, the other aspect of this is that if we believe 

9 so strongly in a client's case, what stops us from acting 

10 pro bono? There's no reason why, as attorneys, we can't 

11 if we're to believe so strongly in our client's case and 

12 they need representation, well we can work for free. So, 

13 that's another red herring here to tug on the -- this 

14 Court's heart strings and that appalls me. There's no 

15 right to say, well, she really needs representation, then 

16 she really needs us to represent her. There's other 

17 attorneys by the way, Your Honor, just to be clear, so 

18 we're having this all in context, that have claimed that 

19 they are also owed monies. 

20 In Mr. Moody's Motion, there's a letter from 

21 Candice Renka saying that Marquis Aurbach's owed $150,000. 

22 So, in the grand scheme of things that we're picking and 

23 choosing who gets paid here and who doesn't get paid? 

24 That's ridiculous. 

25 The other problem I have here is that just a 
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1 couple weeks ago we were talking about Ms. Ahern had a ring 

2 that's worth $30,000. Where did that ring go, Your Honor? 

3 Why exactly is that not being used? Again, the other 

4 question I have is why is Mr. Shapiro apparently 

5 representing her in another matter? He apparently is 

6 get ting paid. 

7 So until we have effectively the functional 

8 equivalent of a debtor's exam or we have a declaration 

9 under oath as to these are my assets, these are where they 

10 went, this is all premature. This is completely premature 

11 because we're taking guesses that were getting factual, 

12 accurate information from Ms. Ahern, and I would 

13 respectfully submit that, given her actions, that -- she 

14 does not get that benefit of the doubt here, whatsoever. 

15 So until we have a deposition where Ms. Ahern 

16 completely answers for where these monies have gone, this 

17 is all premature. This is completely premature. It's not 

18 fair. It's not right to my clients to say -- because this 

19 is what I would submit to you, Your Honor. We are 

20 effectively in an annuity situation here. Well, why is 

21 that? Because the bottom line is Jacqueline and Katherine 

22 are 100 percent beneficiaries of this trust when Ms. Ahern 

23 passes. So the ' ' issue is, is that if Ms. Ahern should pass 

24 in the next few years, my clients are never going to get 

25 fully recovered. The only asset that they have is to get a 
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1 surcharge against what Ms. Ahern would otherwise have been 

2 entitled to receive had she not gone to what she did. 

3 And so until my clients are put back to square 

4 one, it is unbelievably unfair for them to even be talking 

5 about: Well, we're going to take more money out, and we 

6 need this, and we need that. Wrong. Wrong. That's 

7 totally unfair. And this is a Court of equity where 

8 fairness is supposed to be the be all and end all as to 

9 what the party's positions are. 

10 Reality is, Ms. Ahern created this situation for 

11 herself. Jacqueline and Katherine had nothing to do with 

12 this. They have had to deal from day one when she 

13 unilaterally stopped those payments. They've had to deal 

14 with the collateral damage the entire time. They've had to 

15 deal with the financial stress. They've had to deal with 

16 the emotional stress. 

17 As I've pointed out, Ms. Ahern can now experience 

18 that. She can now experience what happens when you don't 

19 get that check every month that you've been relying on. 

20 She's made her bed, Your Honor. She can lay in it. And if 

21 she wants to explain where the monies have gone, go ahead. 

22 We've been asking for this. We've been asking for this. 

23 Mr. Waid has been asking for this. Tell us what you have 

24 done with the monies. If they're gone, say they're gone. 

25 If you believe they can be recovered, explain. Give up the 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

road map to Mr. Waid. This is how I think you can recover 

those monies. But you've got to explain. You can't, as a 

trustee, hide behind and say: My lips are sealed. I'm not 

telling you. You go figure it out. That is brazen 

attitude to this Court. It's disrespectful to this Court. 

It's disrespectful to my clients. It's also disrespectful 

to Mr. Waid who can't do his job without getting answers. 

And, again, it troubles me that Ms. Ahern is in 

this courtroom and is -- we're acting as though: Well, we 

have to figure out who the mystery person is that has all 

the answers to this. And, again, that will be, hopefully, 

at this deposition that is coming up, that will finally, 

hopefully, get Ms. Ahern to give us answers under oath as 

to what's gone on here. And until we get answers, these 

requests are totally, completely premature and they're -­

they should be completely ignored by this Court and said 

17 no. 

18 

Not happening. 

THE COURT: 

Not happening. 

All right. Well I guess the -- I 

19 understand what you're saying. I guess the concern that I 

20 have here is that if the goal that we have is to find out 

21 from the one person who has the information, can you help 

22 us recover this money? Because hopefully she knows who she 

23 gave it to. She either gave it to people who are holding 

24 it for her --

25 MR. POWELL: -- or she spent it. 
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1 THE COURT: Or she spent it. Or they stole it. 

2 MR. POWELL: Correct. So I don't -- and that's 

3 exactly 

4 THE COURT: We don't have a whole lot of options. 

5 There may be people -- I know that there's been a real 

6 concern, and there's been a concern from day one, and as 

7 I've said, you know, I regret that I did not get to the 

8 point of understanding earlier how invidious these people 

9 who surround her are. But it's a deep concern for the 

10 Court that there are people who appear to have taken 

11 advantage of her better nature and to the detriment of her 

12 family and herself, because I would submit that it's 

13 largely these persons who have left her in the position 

14 that she is, where she is on public assistance, which must 

15 be very humiliating for somebody who's always had a nice 

16 stream of income from this family asset. I understand that 

17 it is very distressing at her age to be placed in this 

18 position, but as you pointed out, she could stop it 

19 tomorrow by simply telling Mr. Waid where the money went. 

20 MR. POWELL: Exactly. 

21 THE COURT: My problem is how do we assist in 

22 reaching that resolution, short of having her have legal 

23 counsel? I am -- we all talked about it at the time that I 

24 I don't know if it was Ms. Peterson or if it was Mr. 

25 or there was somebody else who came to one hearing that 
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1 wasn't Mr. Lenhard. We talked about the fact that -- and I 

2 know that when Mr. Lenhard talked about leaving her at your 

3 -- in your hands, unrepresented, that nobody in this case 

4 has ever, I believe, ever treated Mrs. Ahern with anything 

5 other than the respect due to her. I know that Mr. Waid 

6 would not -- I understand your frustration and her 

7 daughter's frustration. It is very disturbing to think 

8 that people took advantage of her and somehow managed to 

9 convince her to turn over all this money. 

10 horrifying. 

It is 

11 MR. POWELL: But I would submit to you, Your 

12 Honor, is we don't know. We have always surmised that 

13 what's happened. 

14 THE COURT: Correct. We --

is 

15 MR. POWELL: But we've also seen expenses as well. 

16 THE COURT: Well sure. 

17 MR. POWELL: Ms. Ahern has, apparently, flown on 

18 private jets. 

19 THE COURT: No, and we --

20 MR. POWELL: She's cruised around the world and --

21 THE COURT: The thing is, Mr. Powell, I don't know 

22 that that was her lifestyle always. It may have been her 

23 lifestyle always. But maybe it's just a lifestyle that was 

24 influenced by other people who were hangers on. So, I 

25 can't really judge that yet until we've had this hearing. 

Page 48 

AA1161



1 And my thing is how do we assist you in getting to 

2 the point where you can find out for your clients Mr. 

3 Waid can find out for everybody, and because this is 

4 ultimately benefit Ms. Ahern as well, where the money went. 

5 Because there is a lot of money, some of which she had an 

6 interest in, that is just gone. And, as we said, it's 

7 either been stolen from her, she's given it to somebody to 

8 hold for her to recover at a future date, or she spent it. 

9 

10 

MR. POWELL: Correct. 

THE COURT: And if she just went on a big buying 

11 spree, I haven't seen any evidence of that. I understand 

12 that there were some unusual expenses paid for by the trust 

13 that were not appropriate. We'll get to all that in an 

14 alternate hearing. 

15 I'm just trying to 

16 does it benefit us, at this 

17 Mr. Lenhard, to say we will 

say that at some point in time, 

point, as was pointed out by 

advance this money, subject to 

18 it being clawed back, surcharged, whatever, because we want 

19 to get to that hearing. We want those answers. We want 

20 them in a Court of law so that we can make the findings, 

21 because right now we can't make certain findings. We can't 

22 make findings that we have a fraud or crime exception, 

23 because we have not proven that yet. You ultimately want 

24 to get there, so don't we need to get there? 

25 And I would say, again, as I've always said, that 
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1 whether she's paid them or not, Ms. Ahern has always had 

2 the best counsel, and they have given her excellent 

3 representation, certainly current counsel have headed off 

4 one criminal charge so far. It's a criminal charge, and we 

5 all need to be very cognizant of that, because it is a very 

6 scary thing, and I think that's Mr. Lenhard's concern as 

7 counsel for someone if you are leaving them facing 

8 potentially criminal exposure and you're leaving them 

9 unrepresented. It's a little different, with all due 

10 respect. 

11 I understand that every Friday, Commissioner 

12 Yamashita deals with 150 matters, many of whom are prose, 

13 and are very serious in their own context to those 

14 individuals. I understand that. We're talking here if our 

15 concerns are correct, it is something that's been voiced in 

16 here by everybody, but we can't -- we don't know it yet. 

17 It's potentially -- has very serious ramifications. And I 

18 understand Mr. Lenhard's ethical concern that he leaves a 

19 person unrepresented facing that. It's not just about 

20 returning grandma's Hanukkah china. I had that case. I 

21 had a case about Hanukkah china. I really did. It was 

22 really important to those people. Really important. 

23 Everybody's in their own relative understanding. This has 

24 a little bit another level in another layer. 

25 And I understand the ethical concern that Mr. 
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1 Lenhard is raising here, as a former criminal defense 

2 attorney who does -- also a lot of white collar crime. 

3 This is -- when you withdraw and you leave a client facing 

4 potentially fraud and/or criminal charges, it's a big deal. 

5 And it's a burden on an attorney's ethics to say I'm just 

6 going to walk away from this person and leave them, and I 

7 know that he didn't mean anything disparaging about how 

8 counsel have treated his clients, but just leaving him --

9 leaving his client in a position where she is exposed to 

10 the very competent counsel on the other side who -- so 

11 that's my concern, is that it seems to me that there is 

12 some point where something can be done. 

13 My concern has always been: I don't know that 

14 there's any money. I don't know that there is any money 

15 because this trust was left in a very precarious position. 

16 There's a huge tax liability and I don't know that we can 

17 say: Okay, well let's make a distribution here and we'll 

18 get the -- we'll be able to get it back, ultimately, if we 

19 don't even know if we have money to pay it. 

20 of my concern. 

So that's part 

21 MR. POWELL: Your Honor, we do have money to pay 

22 it. The issue, though, now is that my clients, again, are 

23 dealing with the damage of this. 

24 And to your point on the criminal matter, I just 

25 want to make it very clear, if you -- and I'm not going to 
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1 speak for Mr. Waid or Mr. Moody, but if criminal action is 

2 going to be brought, respectfully, it's going to be on your 

3 doing. I don't see my clients wanting to jail their 79 

4 year old mother, who, by the way, if Ms. Ahern is ever 

5 hungry, she is always welcome at Jacqueline's home. That's 

6 an outstanding invite that, hopefully, these speakers are 

7 picking up. She can always knock on the door and she will 

8 be fed, she will be taken care of. So going to a food bank 

9 seems a little absurd when Jacqueline is willing to do 

10 this. 

11 

12 

THE COURT: Okay. 

MR. POWELL: So if your concern is that we are 

13 leaving Ms. Ahern to the wolves, there are no wolves over 

14 here. 

15 THE COURT: Apparently homeless, because she's 

16 renting a home. Okay. Fine. Thank you, Mr. Powell, I 

17 appreciate that. 

18 MR. POWELL: Well, I just want to make it clear 

19 just -- because if that is on your mind, I don't know if 

20 all we are seeking is like anybody else in this situation 

21 would. Do you have the money? Did you give the money 

22 away? Is it spent? I -- we're not concerned with the 

23 ramifications. 

24 THE COURT: I understand. This whole thing can be 

25 wrapped up tomorrow 
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MR. POWELL: Yeah. 

THE COURT: -- if she just told us that. 

1 

2 

3 MR. POWELL: Exactly. Or if she told Mr. Waid 

4 that. 

5 THE COURT: With all due respect --

6 MR. POWELL: 

could care less. If 

I don't even need to be present. I 

7 I am not here to grill Ms. Ahern, I 

8 don't care. Mr. Waid is, like he said, is spinning wheels 

9 here spending money, and I 

10 THE COURT: Okay. We're talking about two 

11 different things here. 

MR. POWELL: Okay. 12 

13 THE COURT: Now, with all due respect, Mr. Waid 

14 wants to do what he's been tasked by the Court to do. I 

15 understand that. That's his job. He's doing this to the 

16 best of his ability and he's being stonewalled. I 

17 understand that. 

18 But the problem that I have here is there is an 

19 additional layer on here. There is a challenge. There is 

20 a request to deprive her of her future interest in the 35 

21 percent. There is a request to surcharge her for 

22 everything else that's gone on. And if there was, on her 

23 part and not these, you know, bad people, crime committed, 

24 it might have been, we don't know, there's a reason why she 

25 has to have legal protection because I understand your 
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5 
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7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

clients want their money back, but that's a little 

different from just saying Mr. Waid needs to find the 

money. Do you see what I'm saying? 

MR. POWELL: Well, okay. If 

THE COURT: If it weren't an issue of saying we 

don't want her to have a dime in the future, dhe's given up 

her right to that 35 percent because of her bad acts, we 

don't want her to have any of the money that she should 

have been accumulating because she's got to pay us back 

first, if you're successful in your request for recovery of 

records -- Mr. Lenhard said right away, if you're 

successful in your request for recovery, it's a really big 

deal. 

And I -- and she's -- I can understand why she's 

not willing to just go in to Mr. Waid and say: Here's the 

story. Because she faces potential sanctions that are 

huge, to use a [indiscernible] tern for it, huge. 

MR. POWELL: But how exactly 

THE COURT: And I understand why Mr. Lenhard is 

20 deeply concerned about leaving a client unrepresented when 

21 facing that. 

22 MR. POWELL: So my opinion -- my report to you, 

23 Your Honor, and I'm not saying this flippantly. 

24 THE COURT: Right. 

25 MR. POWELL: I'm not saying this sarcastically. 
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1 Stay in the case. 

2 THE COURT: Right. 

3 MR. POWELL: Stay in the case. 

4 THE COURT: Okay. Thank you. All right. 

5 MR. POWELL: But --

6 THE COURT: Thank you. 

7 MR. POWELL: Okay. 

8 THE COURT: Mr. Waid. 

9 MR. WAID: I just have just two concerns. One, 

10 the information that we're all seeking, that this Court, in 

11 order to rule on the pending motions, and probably future 

12 motions that are going to be filed, I have to gather the 

13 information first. 

14 

15 

THE COURT: Right. 

MR. WAID: And so I'm hopeful at the forthcoming 

16 deposition, which I assume will still be on, that we can 

17 have that measure of cooperation. It would help me if I 

18 had some assurance in this matter to know that counsel's 

19 still going to be here. My concern is this: Having spoken 

20 to all the former counsel, it is a consistent pattern in 

21 this case that counsel reaches a point where they either 

22 withdraw because of conflict, they withdraw for ethical 

23 considerations, as did Marquis and Aurbach, or similar 

24 reasons. If we're going to go down this road, I think it's 

25 important we have a commitment that Mr. Lenhard and Ms. 
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1 Peterson and their firm are actually going to be here 

2 because right now we've blown our February date. 

3 THE COURT: Right. 

4 MR. WAID: I have no hesitation in telling you 

5 that with what happened in the previous hearing in Judge 

6 Johnson's Court, and with what's happening in Texas, I'm 

7 not going to be ready in February, because I can't even --

8 I just can't do it. 

9 THE COURT: Right. Okay. Well, so here's, I 

10 guess, the concern that I have. Mr. Moody raised a concern 

11 that we don't know what the assistance at $18.75 an hour, 

12 eight hours a week is. Don't know. I'm not inclined to 

13 grant that. I do believe that some allowance is 

14 appropriate. Attorneys' fees, my concern would be not paid 

15 to Mrs. Ahern, but paid to counsel. And if they feel, as 

16 you've raised a concern, if they have a concern about they 

17 still aren't able to go forward for some other reason, but 

18 if the budget that Mr. Lenhard is given us is what it is, 

19 and if they -- as long as they remain in and you pay them 

20 monthly, then, for me, that takes care of that concern. 

21 I'm not paying the money to Ms. Ahern. So that's what I 

22 would do. 

23 I would grant this request in part, and I would 

24 grant it as follows: I think a monthly allowance of $5,000 

25 is entirely appropriate. However, it would be -- and 
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1 that's paid to Ms. Ahern for -- to Mr. Lenhard, for Ms. 

2 Ahern, however you want to handle it, Mr. Waid. However 

3 you feel more comfortable, so long as the 35 percent 

4 portion that you're holding, and I know you're accounting 

5 for this because I know the work you do, you're accounting 

6 for her 35 percent portion, so long as it's there. And 

7 that's the thing that I still don't you know. I still 

8 am not really clear that we've got some money to pay her 

9 the $5,000 a month living expenses. 

10 MR. WAID: Well, Your Honor, I will tell you, I 

11 just had to pay the IRS an additional amount of money for 

12 2014. '11, '12, and '13, I can't complete until I get all 

13 the rest of the information. 

14 THE COURT: Right. Right. 

15 Mr. WAID: So, it's not as if -- I don't want the 

16 Court to feel that, unlike the previous orders that Ms. 

17 Ahern was under when she was the trustee, --

18 

19 

20 reserve. 

21 

22 

THE COURT: Right. 

MR. WAID: -- take this 65 percent, hold it in 

THE COURT: Right. 

MR. WAID: I can't do that because I have other 

23 liabilities. 

24 

25 

THE COURT: Right. 

MR. WAID: And a clock that's ticking in interest 
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1 and penalties. 

THE COURT: You're right. 2 

3 MR. WAID: That's why I'm trying to race to cut 

4 those parts in pieces off. 

THE COURT: It's a mess. I understand that. 

MR. WAID: And --

5 

6 

7 THE COURT: But to the extent that there is $5,000 

8 that can be found for monthly living expenses, because 

9 unlike, unlike the daughters who are of working age, I 

10 understand and I recall that one of them quit their job and 

11 was, then -- and it was a really good job. It was an 

12 executive job at Wynn. I mean, it was a really good job in 

13 reliance on this and then all the sudden was left with no 

14 income. I understand the concerns they have about 

15 fairness, that this is not fair. I appreciate their 

16 concerns, however, and I understand that there's a portion 

17 -- there is some Social Security income coming to Ms. 

18 Ahern. That's why I said I think $5,000 is perfectly 

19 adequate. That's all she needs from the trust. But I also 

20 think, again, and this is -- this would be after we pay her 

21 attorneys. And it -- all I can really, at this point in 

22 time, really all I can authorize is $10,000 a month. So 

23 MR. WAID: One other caveat. What would be 

24 helpful for me? Because I'm in the hot seat now with 

25 respect to the IRS. 
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1 THE COURT: I understand. 

2 MR. WAID: We just received, was it Monday? 

3 Yesterday. We received part of a production from a former 

4 accountant who was doing trust work, individual work, and 

5 in that production was also information from Ms. Ahern, 

6 individually. In addition to not filing and paying proper 

7 taxes for the trust in prior years, it was apparent in the 

8 production we received that she has issues, personally, 

9 with the IRS. I don't want to be in a position where I'm 

10 writing checks and then I'm dealing with the IRS. I would 

11 respectfully ask that Mr. Lenhard and Ms. Peterson sit with 

12 their client, resolve any issues disclosed to me so that I 

13 don't get liened or my accounts that I'm guarding for the 

14 trust, if they see checks going to her now, I want to make 

15 sure that I don't get involved in her personal IRS matter. 

16 THE COURT: Right. 

17 MR. WAID: And I think that's fair. 

18 THE COURT: I -- it's a nightmare. Okay. So how 

19 what is your concern how we would do that so that it is 

20 clear that the Court is advancing this -- is ordering the 

21 advancement of this money? This is not money at this point 

22 in time that she's entitled to receive, that she has any 

23 interest in, because it's being, I don't know, held 

24 somehow. I mean, is there some language that would protect 

25 you from having your business -- the overall trust account 
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1 -- the overall whole trust account --

2 

3 

4 

MR. WAID: Right. 

THE COURT: -- lien by the IRS? Geez. 

MR. WAID: I would like to not categorize it as a 

5 distribution. 

6 

7 

THE COURT: Okay. 

MR. WAID: I'd like to categorize it as a Court 

8 instruction. 

9 

10 

THE COURT: Okay. All right. 

MR. WAID: That would be easier for me. That way 

11 I think I could be insulated from that. 

12 

13 

14 

THE COURT: Okay. And by you, you mean the trust. 

MR. WAID: The trust. 

THE COURT: The trust is not going to have to bear 

15 her personal tax liability if she wasn't paying her taxes. 

16 MR. WAID: 

17 THE COURT: 

18 MR. WAID: 

19 these, whatever the 

20 distribution. 

21 THE COURT: 

22 MR. WAID: 

It's an instruction 

Yeah. Okay. 

-- that you're ordering the payment of 

Court sets, but it's not a 

Right. 

Because that's, I think, what would 

23 trigger 

24 THE COURT: Right. We're not distributing her 35 

25 percent -- a share of her 35 percent income. The Court is 
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1 giving her an allowance from -- is it allowance an adequate 

2 word? 

3 

4 

MR. WAID: We can try it. 

THE COURT: Okay. Yeah. Then it's an allowance 

5 and ordered by the Court. 

6 MR. WAID: but I would like to not be surprised. 

7 So, to the extent you could also ask Ms. Ahern to 

8 cooperate, that I understand 

9 THE COURT: Right. Yeah. Okay. And now the 

10 other thing that Mr. Lenhard has asked for is a 35 percent 

11 

12 MR. LENHARD: Before you go there, and obviously 

13 that's near and dear to my heart, but --

14 

15 

THE COURT: Right. 

MR. LENHARD: -- before you go there, I can't 

16 discuss with Mr. Waid anything concerning her personal tax 

17 issues 

18 THE COURT: Right. 

19 MR. LENHARD: -- for heaven's sake. 

20 THE COURT: I understand. 

21 MR. LENHARD: And that's -- you understand my 

22 problem with that. 

23 THE COURT: I understand. I understand. This is 

24 the whole thing where we talked about earlier, the problem 

25 that we've got is if she's got individual tax problems, 
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1 those are hers, individually. And the trust is not liable 

2 for her individual tax problems. 

3 MR. WAID: And that's all I'm trying to protect in 

4 this. 

5 THE COURT: And I'm not sure that Mr. Lenhard is 

6 her -- I'm sure he doesn't want to be her individual tax 

7 attorney. If she needs representation dealing with tax 

8 problems, she needs to go get it. She will be receiving a 

9 court ordered allowance of $5,000 a month. Her counsel 

10 will be advanced fees of $10,000 a month. They also ask 

11 for a $30,000 deposit and that's my big hang up is I don't 

12 know if there's enough money to pay a lump sum of 30,000. 

13 MR. WAID: I mean, I have funds, but I don't know 

14 what the tax liability is going to be. 

15 THE COURT: What the tax liabilities are. I --

16 I'm nervous about that one. 

17 

18 in. 

MR. WAID: And there's additional income coming 

So, yes, I mean, I have more than $30,000. 

19 THE COURT: So, I guess my question is: If we can 

20 provide Mr. Lenhard that in installments of some kind, if 

21 he would accept installments on the 30,000? Because I'm 

22 willing to grant it, but I -- you know, it needs to be --

23 I'm not I don't want to put everybody else at risk here. 

24 We've got this tax problem. 

25 MR. WAID: Your honor, just, I'll be brief, but I 
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1 don't want to open the door --

2 THE COURT: I understand. 

3 MR. WAID: to potential issues that the IRS 

4 comes in and says: Well, we're going to capture this now. 

5 Understandably, in this tax year, I just issued over a 

6 million dollar 1099 to her, and it doesn't take long with 

7 seven-figure dollar amounts for the IRS to come knocking, 

8 and that's what I'm trying to avoid, because that hurts 

9 everybody. 

10 

11 

THE COURT: Right. 

MR. WAID: If they come in and assert some 

12 priority position or aspect of this because the Court has 

13 opened the door. I think we're all on the same page. 

14 THE COURT: I know. 

15 MR. WAID: Everybody's going to have some measure 

16 of protection here. I just want to make sure that whatever 

17 Mr. Moody writes in his Order helps me. 

18 

19 

20 

21 

THE COURT: Okay. Well I --

MR. POWELL: Can I be heard just real quickly? 

THE COURT: No, Mr. Powell, really. We're done. 

MR. POWELL: Oh, Your Honor, please though. We 

22 have a $400,000 judgement against Ms. Ahern. Can we not 

23 get that? Why are we jumped back in priority? That's not 

24 fair. 

25 

Come on. 

THE COURT: I understand. 
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1 MR. POWELL: So, if were balancing equities, why 

2 should Mr. Waid not be paying the $400,000 that's owed to 

3 us? That's -- I understand your mentality here, but in the 

4 same respect, we have a pending judgement. 

5 

6 

THE COURT: Right. 

MR. POWELL: That's against -- so I'm failing to 

7 understand here. 

8 And just to be clear, because I need to preserve 

9 the record, obviously, on this. You obviously understand 

10 this. 

11 

12 

13 today. 

14 

15 

I have rights, obviously, now to -­

THE COURT: Absolutely. 

MR. POWELL: -- my clients do based on your ruling 

THE COURT: Right. 

MR. POWELL: One point of clarification: $5,000 

16 in addition to the $1,800 Social Security? 

THE COURT: Right. 

MR. POWELL: So, okay. In addition 

THE COURT: Right. 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

MR. POWELL: $10,000 monthly 

THE COURT: To counsel. 

MR. POWELL: to counsel. Okay. 

THE COURT: Not being paid to her to 

24 being paid to counsel. 

to? 

pay counsel, 

25 MR. POWELL: Direct. I understand. Understand. 
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1 THE COURT: In other words, the trust will -- I 

2 don't know what kind of language Mr. Moody needs, but the 

3 trust will advance funds subject to being -- I forget the 

4 language -- Mr. Lenhard used some language that was like a 

5 surcharge or a payback. It's a loan, basically. Is that -

6 - does that work? 

7 

8 

9 

MR. POWELL: That's the problem I have with your -

THE COURT: Is it a loan? 

10 MR. POWELL: That's the problem I have though is 

11 that you may be looking at this from a, we're protected 

12 because there's a surcharge, but as I'm trying to convey to 

13 you, there is no protection and the reason why there's no 

14 protection is because, as of now, there's approximately 

15 and Mr. Waid can address this if he chooses, I believe 

16 we're talking millions of dollars that are still owing to 

17 my clients. 

18 

19 

THE COURT: Oh yeah. 

MR. POWELL: Here's the issue we have. If Ms. 

20 Ahern is representing to this Court that she is now 

21 indigent and has no assets to pay, if she were to pass next 

22 week, Your Honor, the damage that my client -- to my 

23 clients is done. 

24 

25 

THE COURT: Correct. 

MR. POWELL: It's locked in. 
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1 I just want to be very clear that what you're ruling today 

2 is that there is no security that you are requiring on 

3 these payments, because there is no such thing here, as of 

4 right now, as a claw back, because we would only be secure 

5 to the extent that we were back to square one, and then we 

6 have the pending Motion to Disinherit, enforcing the no 

7 contest clause. So I just want to be clear, for the 

8 record, that your ruling today is that this is unsecured 

9 funds because that's really, in essence, what we are doing 

10 today. 

11 Any dollars that come out from this point, 

12 including, I would point out, the monies that Mr. Waid 

13 if Ms. Ahern is ultimately disinherited, well Jacqueline 

14 and Katherine, again, bear the brunt of Mr. Moody's fees 

15 and Mr. Waid's fees, because there is nothing to collect 

16 against. So just for purposes of clarity in the record, 

17 that is your ruling is that this is effectively an 

18 unsecured situation, because I -- there's no such thing as 

19 the trust being able to get back anything because of the 

20 fact that Jacqueline and Katherine are 100 percent 

21 beneficiaries. It'd be one thing if Ms. Ahern received a 

22 right that survived her death here, but it doesn't. 

23 Jacqueline and Katherine are 100 percent beneficiaries at 

24 Ms. Ahern's passing, and/or, obviously, if you invoke the 

25 no contest clause. 
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1 So, I just need it clear for purposes of 

2 preserving the record, and obviously if my client's choose 

3 to appeal your decision today, that that's effectively what 

4 you're doing. What you're saying is there is no security 

5 that Ms. Ahern is required to provide to receive these 

6 distributions and/or the attorneys' fees. 

7 

8 

9 

THE COURT: What security would she provide? 

MR. POWELL: Your Honor, well, --

THE COURT: Other than the funds have to be paid 

10 back from --

11 MR. POWELL: We don't even know what she -- this 

12 is my point in terms of it's premature is we don't know 

13 what she has. We don't know. You're accepting her 

14 representations right now that I don't have any money. But 

15 as we just pointed out, there's a possibility one of the 

16 three possibilities you just represented is she may be 

17 holding the money in different accounts. 

THE COURT: Sure. 18 

19 MR. POWELL: So that's a possibility. So I don't 

20 understand the rush. If we've got this deposition coming 

21 up in two weeks, why can't we hold this off until the 

22 deposition? Or better yet, why can't we speed this up and 

23 crank this out tomorrow? Or, I respectfully would submit 

24 to you, Your Honor, you, as the judge, have a right to 

25 question Ms. Ahern right now under oath. If you want me to 
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1 take off and leave, I'm happy to leave here so that we can 

2 actually get answers right now, because we could be chasing 

3 our tails. This could be all chasing tails down and going 

4 into a black hole here, and I feel like, respectfully, that 

5 we're compounding this without knowing the facts and the 

6 realities of what truly is going on. 

7 Just as you would have in a bankruptcy proceeding 

8 with a debtor is you have the debtor's exam, effectively, 

9 to say what assets do you have? We're not just simply 

10 taking you word for it when you're not submitting it under 

11 oath. So, I respectfully submit to Your Honor, there is no 

12 rush right now. If we -- if you want me to postpone and 

13 kick out, take off calendar, my petition to invoke the no 

14 contest clause, I' 11 do it. I' 11 do it. I' 11 take it off 

15 calendar right now if that would pacify the pending issues 

16 here. I think it's critical that we have Ms. Ahern have a 

17 deposition. And again, if this needs to happen tomorrow, 

18 now, whatever, there doesn't need to be attorneys' fees 

19 wasted right now. 

20 So what -- I don't understand the rush to make 

21 this determination before we have Ms. Ahern under oath 

22 explain where the assets are. 

23 

24 

THE COURT: Okay. So 

MR. POWELL: If you want me -- I'd be happy to not 

25 even ask a single question at --
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1 THE COURT: Okay. Thank you. 

2 MR. POWELL: -- that deposition if that's another 

3 fear. 

4 THE COURT: Okay. All right. 

5 MR. POWELL: I've also represented on the record, 

6 there is no intent whatsoever to seek criminal actions 

7 against Ms. Ahern on my client' side. I can't control what 

8 Mr. Waid does, I can't obviously control what you do, but 

9 those are decisions, so that's why I think we -- it's so 

10 imperative that we get the answers and we get them now 

11 before we rush into a decision, because, again, with all 

12 due respect, it's irreversible harm, theoretically, that's 

13 occurring here, and that is simply is not fair to my 

14 client. 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

THE 

MR. 

THE 

MR. 

THE 

COURT: 

POWELL: 

COURT: 

POWELL: 

COURT: 

Understood. Thank you. 

If they were in a level position, 

Okay. Thank you. 

I'd be okay with that. 

All right. Thank you. So, I 

20 understand the concern and so, at this point in time, we 

21 still do have a lawyer. I understand Mr. Waid's concern 

22 that we're not going to be able to make a February trial 

--

23 date. I would make this effective for the -- through the 

24 current trial date, so that would be through February, 

25 February 1st
, or whatever day of the month it is. February. 
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1 November to February. If it needs to be renewed at that 

2 point in time, we can revisit it. 

3 And certainly it should be very clear that both 

4 this advancement or loan of living expenses for the 

5 interim, and the loan or advancement of attorneys' fees are 

6 to be paid back from whatever share of the trust may 

7 ultimately be hers, are to be paid back because it is an 

8 advance. It is not and you are right, it is to the 

9 detriment of everybody else. She needs to pay it back 

10 because we're lending her this money to fund her lifestyle 

11 and her legal representation out of the trust. 

12 So, but we have to be very careful how we put it, 

13 because it may effect, and I certainly understand why Mr. 

14 Waid's deeply concerned, because we not only have a huge 

15 tax liability for the trust, but huge tax liabilities, 

16 apparently, for Ms. Ahern, personally, that she needs to 

17 deal with on her own. So, I understand it needs to be very 

18 clear that this is simply there -- right now she has no 

19 right to this money, but money will be lent to her, subject 

20 to her paying it back. And it's temporary. It is for 

21 these next four months. 

22 But we certainly subject to them renewing it if 

23 we have to continue this, which it's -- I just think we all 

24 know we have to continue it, but at this point, I'm only 

25 going -- I'm going with the date we have right now, the 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

February 

$10,000 

trial date, so we'll go through February. 

MR. MOODY: One clarification, Your Honor. 

THE COURT: Yeah. 

MR. MOODY: With regard to both the ongoing 

a month for attorney fees --

THE COURT: Right. 

MR. MOODY: -- and the 30,000 past attorney fees -

THE COURT: I understand they want that in a lump 

10 sum, but my question was: Is it possible to pay it in a 

11 lump sum or do we need to do it in installments? 

12 

13 

14 

MR. MOODY: We'll figure that out. 

THE COURT: Because I would award it, but -­

MR. LENHARD: They can let us know on that. 

15 That's fine. 

16 THE COURT: It needs to -- but I'm not going to 

17 put anything in jeopardy if, you know, if we're going to be 

18 down to $10,000 in the account again. 

19 in that position again. 

I mean, we can't be 

20 MR. MOODY: Mr. Waid's question is: Are those 

21 funds identified for this litigation or can they also be 

22 used for the appeals that are ongoing? 

23 MR. LENHARD: Well, we're treating it as the 

24 it's our responsibility to get that appeal filed, the 

25 opening brief, --
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1 

2 

3 

THE COURT: Yeah. It's --

MR. LENHARD: -- and the consolidate appeal -­

THE COURT: I'm not talking about the litigation 

4 with Mr. Mann. I mean, if that's 

5 

6 

7 

8 Appeals. 

9 

MR. LENHARD: No. We're not in that. 

THE COURT: No. This is 

MR. MOODY: We're talking about the Supreme Court 

MR. LENHARD: Correct. 

10 THE COURT: This litigation and that incudes, as 

11 the Joys of probate, the interim appeals that they have 

12 filed. I --

13 MR. MOODY: So, just as long as we know, these 

14 will not be used for the other litigation involving David 

15 Mann? 

16 

17 

MR. LENHARD: No. That's -- we're not --

THE COURT: Absolutely not. That's why I said 

18 this is money not paid to her, it is money paid to Mr. 

19 Lenhard's law firm for their fees. $10,000 a month plus 

20 however the $30,000 is going to be paid in whatever 

21 installments. 

22 MR. LENHARD: We've not appeared in the Mann 

23 litigation. 

24 

25 

THE COURT: Right. Absolutely clear. 

MR. LENHARD: We refuse to appear in it. We will 
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1 not appear in it. 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

THE COURT: Absolutely. Just so it's perfectly 

clear, this money is for this litigation to this law firm. 

MR. LENHARD: And the appeal. 

THE COURT: Right. The $5,000 is to Ms. Ahern for 

her living expenses. Again, however -- what language you 

need and I don't, you know, greater minds of mine are going 

to have to figure out what language you need so that it's 

very clear that this is not money to which she has an 

10 entitlement or a right in this point in time. 

11 and it will be repaid. 

It's a loan, 

12 

13 

14 

MR. MOODY: I like the world advance. 

THE COURT: Okay. 

MR. MOODY: I mean, that -- we all have -- we 

15 understand that as a term of art in our profession --

16 

17 

THE COURT: Yeah. Okay. 

MR. MOODY: -- and I think it explains exactly how 

18 it's intended. 

19 THE COURT: Right. And it would be subject to 

20 being repaid or off set. I mean, if she's entitled to some 

21 award of her own, it's offset. It's to be -- in other 

22 words, it's not just money that's going out the door. 

23 Okay. 

24 And, again, this is, as I believe, this is in 

25 the best interest of all parties to make sure that Ms. 
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1 Ahern maintains representation to hopefully assist us in 

2 all reaching the ultimate goal of recovering the money, 

3 which I hope everybody understands. I appreciate Mr. 

4 Lenhard and Ms. Peterson's ethical concerns. I think it's 

5 valid and that's the reason why I'm granting it. Okay. 

6 

7 

8 

MR. LENHARD: Thank you, Judge. 

THE COURT: All right. Thank you very much. 

MR. MOODY: Judge, last thing with regard to the 

9 deposition. 

10 THE COURT: Right. 

11 MR. MOODY: I assume that's going to go forward? 

12 MR. LENHARD: Is that here, by the way? 

13 MR. MOODY: It's here. 

14 MR. LENHARD: All right. How do you set -- how 

15 does that work? A courtroom deposition? 

16 

17 reporter. 

18 

19 

20 

21 though? 

22 

THE COURT: Yeah. You just bring in your court 

MR. LENHARD: All right. 

THE COURT: Because it's not recoded on this. 

MR. LENHARD: You've given us the courtroom 

THE COURT: You're given the courtroom and I don't 

23 know. Mr. Moody, do you still want that, because you I 

24 know at the time she was going to be unrepresented and I 

25 know that was a concern for you, so do you still want to do 
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1 it here even though she is going to have counsel? 

2 MR. MOODY: 

3 THE COURT: 

4 MR. MOODY: 

5 planned. 

6 MR LENHARD: 

It's already set up. 

Okay. 

I think we can just go forward as 

Fine with me. Yeah. 

7 THE COURT: Okay. All right. And so you noted --

8 do we have a copy of the Notice? 

9 

10 

11 

12 filed. 

13 

MR. MOODY: I'm sure you do. 

THE COURT: Date and time. 

MS. PETERSON: We do. I don't know if it was 

THE COURT: Because it's not filed. It's note-

14 filed, so if you could just send it to us? 

15 

16 

MR. MOODY: We'll send a courtesy copy. 

THE COURT: So we're sure we will have the door 

17 locked and everything. 

18 MR. LENHARD: Have you arranged for an 

19 audiographer? 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. MOODY: It's -- no, it's a videotape. 

MR. LENHARD: No, no no, I understand that. 

MR. MOODY: Oh. 

MR. LENHARD: She reports to have hearing issues -

THE COURT: Okay. 
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1 MR. LENHARD: -- and I don't want to get in here 

2 and get 

3 

4 

THE COURT: Okay. 

MR. LENHARD: started with this thing and start 

5 messing around with that. 

6 MR. MOODY: No. 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 
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MR. LENHARD: So you should get arranged to get a 

THE COURT: Okay. Off the record. 

PROCEEDING CONCLUDED AT 11:48 A.M. 

* * * * * 
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CERTIFICATION 

I certify that the foregoing is a correct transcript from 
the audio-visual recording of the proceedings in the 
above-entitled matter. 

AFFIRMATION 

I affirm that this transcript does not contain the social 
security or tax identification number of any person or 
entity. 

KRISTEN LUNKWITZ 
INDEPENDENT TRANSCRIBER 
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